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" INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Members of
Edelweiss Retail Finance Lirnited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accampanying standalone financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
{“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
{“the Act”}in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, {“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on standalone
financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report:

S5rNo | Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1. Impairment of financial assets as at | » Read and assessed the Company’s accounting
balance sheet date (expected credit policies for impairment of financial assets and
losses): their compliance with fnd AS 109 and the
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provide for impairment of its loan
receivables (designated at amortised
cost and fair value through other
comprehensive  income) using the
expected credit loss {(ECL) approach. ECL
involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on financial instruments
over their life, considering reasonable
and supportable information about past
events, current  conditions, and
forecasts of future economic conditions
which could impact the credit quality of
the Company’s loans and advances.

In the process, a significant degree of
judgement has heen applied by the
management for:

s Staging of loans (i.e. classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk’
(“SICR") and ‘default’ categories);

s Grouping of borrowers based on
homogeneity by using appropriate
statistical techniques;

» Estimation of behavioural life;

* Determining macro-economic
factors impacting credit quality of
receivables;

s Estimation of losses for lean
products with no/ minimal historical
defaults.
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of Directors.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by understanding the
process of ECL estimation and related
assumptions and tested the controls around
data extraction and validation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based
on their past-due status to check compliance
with requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample
of performing (stage 1} loans to assess whether
any SICR or loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under higher
siages.

Assessed the additional considerations applied
by the management for staging of loans as SICR
or default categories in view of Company's
policy on one time restructuring.

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions
and underlying computation. Assessed the
floor/ minimum rates of provisioning applied by
the Company for loan products with inadequate
historical defaults

Tested assumptions used by the managementin
determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors.

Assessed disclosures included in the financial
statements in respect of expected credit losses.

governance framework approved by the Board

Sales / Assignment of Financial Assets

Read and assessed the Company’s accounting
policies for camputation and accounting of sales
/ assignment of lcan portfolios as per the
provisions of Ind AS 109.

Read and assessed the contracts entered by the
Company for sale/assignment to verify the
gains/ losses on the transactions,

Verified the procedures followed by the
company while carrying out the
sale/assignment.

Read and assessed the amendments to the
contracts entered by the Company with ARC
trusts for change in the rights assigned to the
underlying Security Receipts (SR) resulting in to
de-recognition of Investment in SR and

Phone: +91 22 3512 3184 Email: chetan.sapre@gdaca.com .

Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune — 411 038,
Phone: +91 20 6680 7200; Email - audit@gdaca.com.




G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

recognition of nvestment in SR representing the
residual interest {Equity) to be measured at fair
value through Other Comprehensive Income.

¥ Verification of confirmation and fair valuation of
Security receipts.

Information Other than the $tandalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinian on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, {changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with IND AS and the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting pro
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finaiai atements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinien. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriaieness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

+ FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may he influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. )
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scg%

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in int
control that we identify during our audit.
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We alsa provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have cmlid with releva’c
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I} As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

11} As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account,

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repert in “Annexure
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
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if} The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses];

iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

iv) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 57{viii}{(A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 57{viii}{B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

vi} Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a} and (b} contain any material misstatement.

vii} No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

viii) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting

softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.
As proviso to Rule 3(1} of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 100515W

Mayuresh V., Zele
Partner
Membership No: 150027  °
UDIN :24150027BKGDLF2035
Place :Mumbai

Date :May 06, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED

{Referred to in paragraph [ under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report of even date)
i
a)
A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and location of property, plant and equipment for the year.

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and location of intangible assets.

b) The Company has not physically verified its property plant and equipments during the year,
however there is a regular programme of verification in a phased manner over a period of three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets.

¢) According ta the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee), are held in the name of the Company.

d) The company has neither revalued its Property Plant and Equipments {including Right of Use
assets) nor intangible assets or both during the year.

@) As per the information and explanation provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the ‘Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988)’ and rules made thereunder.

a) The Company business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the reguirements under
paragraph 3{ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has availed working
capital limits from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly statements filed
by the company are in agreement with the books of accounts.

iii.
a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the principal business of the company is to

give loans and hence clause iii(a) of the order is not applicable.

b) As per the information and explanations given to us, the investments made and loans provided by
the company, are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

Company has not given any guarantees, security, and advances in the nature of loans.

c}) Inrespect of the loans/ advances in nature of loan, granted by the company as part of its business,

the schedule of fepayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by t
Company. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable o
furnish entity-wise details of amount, due date of repayment or receipt and the extent of delay (&5 5~ \

\‘&;

suggested in the Gutdance Note on CARO 2020 |ssued by the lnstltute of Chartered Accountant
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of India for the reporting under this Iuse) in this . in loans and which
were not repaid/paid when they are due or were repaid/paid with a delay, in the normal course of
lending business,

Further, except for those instances where there are delays or defaults in repayment of principal
and/or interest as at the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company has disclosed asset
classification/staging of loans in note 11.2 to the standalone financial statements in accordance
with Indian Accounting (Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the parties
are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest, as
applicable.

d} Inrespectofthe loans/advances in nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more than ninety
days (including cases classified as non-performing asset (NPA) as per RBI guidelines) as at March
31, 2024 and the details of the number of such cases, are disclosed in note 11.2 to the standalone
financial statements. In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been by the Company
for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

e) In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to us, the company is in the
husiness of giving loans, hence this clause is not applicable,

f} According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

v.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits or the amounts deemed to be deposit as per the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed.
Accordingly, paragraph 3{v) of the order is not applicable to the company.

vi. The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods. Hence the provisions of Clause 3{vi} of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.
vii.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with the
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues Including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues, wherever
applicable. The provisions relating to duty of excise, duty of custom, sales tax, value added tax, and
service tax are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March
31, 2024 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues in respect of Income

Tax, Duty of Excise, Duty of Customs, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax and V#

Added Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except for the following
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Name of the Nature of Amount (Rs. Pericd to which Forum where the dispute
Statute Dues In millions) the amount is pending
relates
(ST Act ITC Reversal 0.61 | 2017-18 Appellate Authority
GST Act iTC Reversal 0.43 | 2017-18 Appellate Authority
(GST Act ITC Reversal 4,95 | 2018-19 Appellate Authority

viil. According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions or income, not recorded
in the books of account, have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1961).

a. Inouropinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
defaulted in repayments of dues from any lender during the year.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not declared as willful
defaulter by any bank or Financial Institution or any lender.

¢. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management,
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obiained.

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, the funds raised on short term basis
have not been utilized for long-term purposes.

e. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause ix{e)
of the order is not applicable.

f. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause ix(f) of
the order is not applicable.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
records of the Company, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer during the year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 3(x){a) is not
applicable to the company.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures {fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the
vear. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 3(x){b) is not applicable to the company.

Xi.

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the company, by its

officers and employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, no report U/s 143(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 has heen filed by secretarial auditor, or by us in Form ADT ~ 4
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the C
Government.

Fa
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c. According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints have been
received during the year by the company.

xil. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3{xii}{a) to
3(xii)(c}of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records
of the Company, the transactions entered with related parties are in compliance with provisions of
section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such transactions are disclosaed in
the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv,
a. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b. Thereports of the Internal Auditors of the company issued till date for the period under audit were
considered by us.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of records of the Company, the Company during the year has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors covered under the provisions
of sec 192 of the Act and accordingly the provisions of clause {xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

Xvi.
a. Inour opinion, the Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934
(2 of 1934) and accordingly the registration certificate is obtained by the Company.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not conducted Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RB!. Hence the clause 3{xvi){c Jof the
Report is not applicable.

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, there is one Core Investment Company
{CIC) as part of the Group.

xvii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not incurred cash losses
in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviil. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and accordingly, the reporting
requirement under clause 3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the BOD and management
plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and

that company is capable of meeting its liahilities existing as at the date of balance sheet as and
they fall due within a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date.
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XX.

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in respect
of other than ongoing projects which are required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule
VIl to the Companies Act, within a period of 6 months of the expiry of the financial year in
compliance with second proviso to Sec 135 (5) of the said Act.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in respect
of ongoing project which are required to be transferred to special account in compliance with the
provision under section 135(6) of the said Act.

xxi. The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and hence the provisions
of Clause of 3(xxi)is not applicable.

For G. D. Apte & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership No: 150027

UDIN  :24150027BKGDLF2035
Place :Mumbai

Date :May06, 2024

Mumbai Office: D-509, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar West, Mumbai ~ 400086
Phone: +91 22 3512 3184 Email: chetan.sapre@gdaca.com .

Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony {Right), Paud Road, Pune —411 038,

Phone:+91 20 6680 7200; Email — audit@gdaca.com. 11
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STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 1 {f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note"} issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143{10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial cantrols over financial reporting included abtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
cver financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generallyZ.
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only ff

Mumbai Office: D-509, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar West, Mumbai - 400028
Phone:+91 22 3512 3184 Email: chetan.sapre@gdaca.com . )
Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune - 411 038,

Phone: +91 20 6680 7200; Email — audit@gdaca.com. 12




G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Staterments,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2024, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 100515W

i

Mavyuresh V. Zele
Partner
Membership No: 150027
UDIN  :24150027BKGDLF2035
Place :Mumbai.

Date :May06, 2024

Mumbai Office: D-509, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar West, Mumbai - 400086
Phone: +91 22 3512 3184 Email: chetan.sapre@gdaca.com ,

Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune — 411 038§,

Phone: +91 20 6680 7200; Email — audit@gdaca.com. 13
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Note

ASSETS
Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 8
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9
(c) Trade receivables 10
{(d) Loans 11
{e) Investments 12
(f) Other financial assets 13
Non-firancial assets
(a} Current tax assets (net) 14
(b) Deferred tax assets (nef) 15
(c) Property, plant and equipment 16
(d) Infangible assets under development 17
(e} Other intangible assets 18
(f) Other non-financial assets 19
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
(&) Trade payables 20

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises

(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Debt securities 21
{c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 22
{d) Subordinated liabilities 23
{e) Other financial liabilities 24
Non-financial liabifities
(a) Current tax liabilities (nef) 25
(b) Provisions 26
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 27
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 28
(b} Other equity 29
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, 1 to 63

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFi egigtratién Number : 100545

ma Asnani
Director
DIN: 09774021

/Hitesh Bhadada

Chief Financial Officer

per Maynresh V. Zele
Partner
Membership no: 150027

Place : Mumbai e
Date : 6th May 2024 |

%

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
357.94 267.13
102.23 119,37
0.69 35.21
7,172.94 5,443.67
2,219.34 3,293.53
18.23 826.19
9,871.37 9,985.10
37.37 72.53
21.26 36.54
8.30 26.49
12.99 0.00
89.04 112,26
104.59 112.31
273.55 360.13
10,144.92 10,345,23
0.01 -
177.6% 57.27
1,166.41 §89.88
254.47 705.60
2,233.62 2.190.60
697.72 1,021.92
4,529.93 4,865.27
51.49 5917
11.38 12.95
41.22 4].34
104.09 113.46
429.50 429.50
5,081.40 4,937.00
5,510.90 5,366.50
10,144.92 10,345.23
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
%a]
\AEN

Phanindranath Kakarla

Director
DIN: (2076676

Pestoi~

Reema Shah

Company Secretary

FSC -9052



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Note For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I. Revenue from cperations
Interest income 30 904.06 1,35E.19
Dividend income - -
Fee and commission income 31 20.49 3140
Net gain on fair value changes 32 145.67 (95.60)
Total revenue from operations 1,070.22 1,286.99
II. Other income 33 15.23 10.22
III. Total Income 1,085.45 1,297.21
IV. Expenses
Finance costs 34 428.29 647.86
Impairment on financial instruments 35 (7.73) (189.48)
Employee benefits expense 36 217.87 236,33
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 17 & 19 26,27 10.56
Other expenses 37 238.91 220.93
Total expenses 903.61 926.20
V. Profit before tax 181.84 371.01
V1. Tax expenses:
Current tax 18 22.40 12.63
(1) Current tax 3011 12.63
(2) Short / (Excess) provision for earlier years {7.71) -
Deferred tax 38 15.26 80.52
VIL Profit for the year 144.18 277.86
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans 42 {0.63) (.88
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to - -
profit or loss 38
Other Comprehensive Income 0.63) 0.88
Total Comprehensive Income 143,58 278.75
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs, 10 each):
(1) Basic 40 3.36 6.47
(2) Diluted 3.36 6.47
The accompanying Botes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to 83

As per our report of even date attached.

Fox G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

<

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

x A

ma Asnani Phanindranath Kakarla
Director Director
DIN: 09774021 DIN: 02076676

Rt

Reema Shah
Company Secretary
FSC -9052

per Mayuresh V. Zele
Partner
Membership no: 150027

Hitesh Bhadada
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : 6th May 2024




Edefweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement of Cash flows
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 181.84 37161
Adjustments for
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 26.27 10.56
Impairment of financial assets (7.713) {189.48)
Interest on debt securities (EIR adjustment) 81.74 21521
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities (EIR adjustroent) 132.48 222.42
Interest on subordinated liabitities (EIR adjustment) 210.68 205.42
Fair Value of Financial Instruments (33.40) 49,47
Expense on Employee stock option scheme 1.06 2.80
Interest on lease liabilities 1.04 1.93
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Property, plant and equipment (0.04) (0.25)
Oyperating cash flow before working capital changes 593.96 889.10
Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade receivables 34.52 (15.57)
Decrease/(Increase) in stock in trade - (127.84)
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans (net) (1,721.55) 4,982,23
Decrease/(Increase) in Other financial assets 825,10 {717.55)
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments 301.06 398.01
Deecrease/(Increase) in Other non financial assets 772 45.80
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 119.36 0.37
Increase / (Decrease) in Non financial liabilities and provisions (2.32) 379
Increase / (Pecrease) in Other financial liability 16.03 (183.67)
Cash used in operations 173,87 5,275.17
Incore taxes paid (net) 508 (6.05}
Net cash used in operating activities -A 178,96 5,269.12
B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 0.94 (112.31)
Decrease/(Increase) in Intangibles under development (12.99) 92,94
Purchase of ATF/Security Receipt investments (1,521.96) (2,367.58)
Sale of Property, plant and equipment (0.45) (0.60)
Sale/Redemption of AIF/SR investments 2,334.49 288.24
Dividend on investments - -
Net cash generated from / {used in) investing activities - B 794.04 (2,09%.31)
C  Cash flow from financing activitics
Proceeds from issuance of Share capital (including Securities Premium) - -
Increase / {Decrease) in Debt Securities’ 276.54 (1,872.58)
Increase / {Decrease) in Borrowings other than Debt Securities' (451.13) (1,073.12)
Increase / (Decrease) in Subordinate Debt 43.02 (0.00)
Repayment of lease obligations (4.41) (9.62)
Securitization liability (321.30) 529.26
Interest on borrowings (424.90) (643.08)
Net cash generated from financing activities - C (882.18) (3,069.12)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 90.81 100.72
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 267.13 166.41
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 357.94 267.13
Operational cash flows from interest
Interest paid 397,17 646.16
Interest received 1,002.13 1,023.93
Dividend received - -
CSR contribution {0 Edc! Give Foundation 4.95 4.50

Notes:
1. Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transaction
2. For disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer note 39

As per our report of even date attached. .

For G. D. Apte & Co,
Chartercd Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Edelwei

Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Fi isppdtion Number : 100515W /7" Q¢

oy A
per’Mayuresh V. Zele ama Asnani
Partner Director
Membership No. 150027 DIN: 09774021

Place : Mumbai
Date : 6th May-2024

Hitesh Bhadada
Chief Financial Officer

s Retail Finance Limited

Phanindranath Kakarla
Director
DIN: 62076676

RE Aol

Reema Shah
Company Secretary
FSC -5052
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information:

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (‘ERFL’ or ‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company was originally
incorporated on February 18, 1997 as “Affluent Dealcom Private Limited” which subsequently got converted
to public limited on January 1, 2014 and then the Company’s name changed to “Edelweiss Retail Finance
Limited” with effect from January 6, 2014. The Company is subsidiary of Edelcap Securities Limited. ERFL
is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Systemically Important Non Deposit Accepting Non-
Banking Financial Company.

As an NBFC-ND#SI, the Company is primarily in business of lending and carries out only such activities as are
permitted under the guidelines issued by RBI for NBFC-ND-SI

2. Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
such as, financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments,
derivative financial instruments, fair value through Profit or Loss and other financial assets held for trading,
certain property plant and equipment which have been measured at fair vahie . The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1 Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity in compliance with the Division II of the
Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is
presented in “Note 43 - Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities”,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all the following circumstances:

¢ The normal course of business
e The event of default
¢ The event of insolvency or bankmptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

3. Material accounting policies information
3.1 Recognifion of Interest income and Dividend income
3.1.1 Effective Interest Rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of financial instrament.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of zg the expected life of the loan. Hence,
it recognises the effect of potentially different je#

characteristics of the product life cycle includig




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than
credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

3.1.2 Interest Income:

3.1.3

3.14

3.1.5.

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets,

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 111, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected
credit loss) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired,
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on gross basis.

Penal interest income on delayed EMI / pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis.

Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income includes fee other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The
Company recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the
relevant contracts / agreements and basis the probability of consideration collection.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established on
the reporting date.

Other Income

Other Income represents income eamed from activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive income is established as per the terms of the contract.
Other ancillary charges are recognized on realisation.

3.2 Financial Instruments:

321

322

Date of recognition:

Financial asseis and liabilities except of debt securities and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e. the date when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. This includes regular ways of trade: purchase or sale of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the
customers’ account. The Company recognises borrowing when funds are available for
utilisation to the Company.

Inifial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Trade receivables
are measured at transaction price .Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Habilities {other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Classification and Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets bagg
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured/f



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

¢ Amortised cost
s Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI)
¢ Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]

The Company measures debt financial assets at amortised cost basis the following conditions:
that meet the following conditions at amortised cost:

» the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

¢ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

s the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in camrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)-Loans

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair
value of financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Unrealised gains or losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income,and on derecognition of such instrument accumulated gains or losses
are recycled to profit and loss statement. Interest income on such instrument is recognised in
profit and loss statements using EIR method.

Investment in equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,
unless the management has elected to classify imrevocably some of its strategic equity
investments to be measured at FVOCI, when such insttuments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of a.-.\: tegories are measured at FVTPL.

The Company measures all financial assets classif q\@s’li‘?ﬁ; at fair value at each reporting
date. The change in fair value of financial assetg/igLec N rofit and loss account.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

3.3 Financial Assets and Liabilities:

331

33.2

333

3.34

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of
financial instruments that are managed together, for which evidence of recent pattern of short-
term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company - -measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amortised cost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial Guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contract that requires the Company to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate are
initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee
or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised amount and the
amount of loss allowance.

Loan Commitments:
Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Corapany is required to provide

a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer over the duration of the commitment, Undrawn
loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

3.4 Reclassification of Financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line,
Financial liabilities are never reclassified. If the Company reclassifies financial assets. it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognized gains. losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest

3.5 Derecognition of financial Instruments:

351

Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the
financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both,
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

e It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flow , t material delay to third party
under pass through arrangement. N
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Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a coniractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the "eventual recipients’), when all of
the following conditions arec met:

e The Company has no obligation to pay amount to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amount from the orginal asset, excluding short-term advances with the
right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

¢ The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventnal
recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flow it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest eamed, during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
» The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original
EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

3.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow
recognised as new financial liability, is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

3.6 Impairment of financial assets:

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL™) on all loans, other
financial assets not measured at FVTPL | undrawn loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts,
in this section all referred to as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the ¢ Mg cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest AN s1ders the amount and timing of
payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expec dut later than when contractually
due.

£
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Simplified Approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant
financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.

General Approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk {SICR) since initial recognition, If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default ocourring since initial recognition instead of an evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrving amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:

Stage I Assets:

Stage I assets include financial instruments that did not have a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage II Assets:

Stage I Assets include financial instruments that have a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months from
reporting date) are recognised.

Stage III Assets:
Stage III Assets are considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these
loans. The method is similar to that for Stage II assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The expected credit loss on the uncancellable loan commitment is recognised together with the loss
allowance for the financial asset.

ight to Company to cancel
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Gpin @ [imit its exposure to credit
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3.8

3.9

3.10

losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the
Company’s expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company’s future
risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

Collateral YValuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements.
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-
assessed on a periodic basis, However, some collateral, for example, securities relating to margin
requirements, is assessed on a daily basis.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued using
models.

Coliateral Repossessed:

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal
operations or shounld it be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred
to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held
for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at
the repossession date ,in line with the Company’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets
in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle
outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice,
the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

Write-Offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery besides technical write off as per relevant policy.

Forborne and modified loan:

The Company sometimes make concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a response
to the borrower’s financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection
of collateral. The Company considers a loan forbore when such concessions or modifications are
provided as a result of the borrower’s present or expected financial difficulties and the Company would
not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties
include defaults on covenants, significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Depariment. Forbearance
may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the
terms have been renegotiated, any impairment measured using the original EIR as calculated before the
modification of terms. It is the Company’s policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future
payments continue to be likely to occur. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, it is
disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage III forborne asset and Company continues to monitor until,
it is collected or written off.

Determinafion of Fair Value:

The Company measures financial instroments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement _ 'u' value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or tig# sﬁﬁi&l{ﬂ%' ity takes place either;

s In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
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» Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use, when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest, A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 Financial Instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date, The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 Financial Instruments:
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived directly or indirectly
from observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 Financial Instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

L eases:

Company as a lessee:

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leasés and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of Use Assets:

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated

irect costs incurred, and
Ntives received, Right-of-
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use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease termi. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments} or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of
property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

Company as lessor:

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period. As
a lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers subsiantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could oceur if securities or other confracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamnings per share and weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Retirement and other employee benefit:
3.14.1 Provident fund and National Pension Scheme:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14.2 Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have eamed in return for their service in the cwrrent and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, angd e.fa'rkvaiue of any plan assets, if any,
is deducted. The present value of the obligation undgr Quriaberfit plan is determined based on
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Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
3.14.3 Compensated Absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

3.14.4 Equity-settied share-based payments and Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs):

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granfed by the ultimate parent Company.
These are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the difference
between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company
on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent
Company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent Company. These are classified as equity
settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the *"ESOP
reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period,
the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because cach instalment has a different
vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

3.15 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

o
nq i’
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Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expecied useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful Iives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier.
In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule II for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives

Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles

10 years
8 years




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the finaneial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

3.16

3.17

3.18

Office Equipment 5 years
Computers - Servers and networks 6§ years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets or the period of lease whichever is earlier.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fufure economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The camrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost Iess accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised
over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected
at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the Hability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
confingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recoguition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtnally certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.
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3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash at banks and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

3.20 Imcome tax expenses:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

3.20.1

3.20.2

3.20.3

Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible ternporary
differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no Ionger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or seitle the carrying amount of its assets and Habilities.

Current and Deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular,

information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements
are included are given below:
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4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Business model assessment:

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the
managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is
part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a
change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those instruments.

Significant increase in credit risk:

As explained in note 49.1, ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for Stage I assets,
or lifetime ECL for Stage II or Stage III assets. An asset moves to Stage IT when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. Ind AS 109 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information. Refer to note 49.1 for more details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Judgements and
estimates include consideration of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk, funding

-value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 3.1.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:

The impairment provisions for the financial assets except assets valued at fair value through Profit &
Loss account (FVTPL) are based on assumptions about estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows, collateral values, assessment of a significant ingreasestn,credit risk, probability of default
(PD} and Loss given default (LGD) rates. The Compa ; = in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs for impairment calculations bag , existing market conditions
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and forward looking estimates at the end of each period. These estimates are driven by number of factors,
change in which can result in different level of allowance.

The Company’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are output of complex model with number of
underlying assumptions regarding choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the
ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

e The Company’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades based on
ageing.

s The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment.

o The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL. is assessed on a collective basis.

s Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs Determination
of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment
levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

» Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

6. Recent Accounting Pronouncement:

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA”) notifies new Standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.

7. A Scheme of Amalgamation for merger (Merger by Absorption) of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
{"ERFL") with the Company ("Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders under section 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Ruies made there under has been filed with the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") on March 26, 2019. Further, on March 25, 2019, the Company had applied
for approval from the Reserve Bank of India in relation to the said merger, which was approved by the RBI on
September 27, 2019. The Company is in process to obtain NOCs from all the lending banks.
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees ins milliens)

10(a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposiss with origisal imaturity more than three months and less than 12 months

Fixed deposits with original maturity more than 12 months

Encumbrances on fixed deposits with bank held by the Conspany

Given as credit enhancements towards securitisation

Trade receivables

Trade receivables (Unsecured)
Receivables considered good - non-related party
Receivables considered good - refated party - (Refer note 45)
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Less ; Aflowance for expected credit losses

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:

Enpainnent allowance ieasured as per simplified appreach
Iimpairment allowance - Opening Balance
{Add)/ Less; Change due to receivabie balance/bucketig (net}
Impainment allowance - Closing Balance

Nete: For disclosure relating to trade receivable ageing/ prevision matrix, refer note 31

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
As at.March 31, 2024

Particnlars

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

(17} Undisputed Frade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Less than 6
Months

021

6 Months -
1 Year

0.52

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31,2023

357.94 267.13
357.94 267.13
102.23 97.36
- 22.01
102,23 119.37
102.23 106.97
Asat Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

0.64 12,31
0.09 2345
0.62 0.65
135 36,41
{0.66) (1.19)
0.69 35.21

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

(L1%)
0.53
(0.66)

(0.49)
(0,70}
L.19)

OQutstanding for March 31, 2024 *
1.2 Years 2.3 years More than 3

years

Total

Receivable (A)

0.21

0.52

- 0.62 - 1.35

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered pood

(ii} Undispated Frade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(§ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good

{¥) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

0.00

0.04

0.04

- 0.62 - 0.62

ECL Provision on receivables (B)

8.00

0,04

Receivables net of provision = (A)-(B)

0.21

048

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

(i) Urdisputcd Trade receivables — considered good

() Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

{iv) Dispuied Trade Receivables- considered pood

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have sianificant increase
in eredit risk

{v1) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Less than 6
Months

35.69

6 Months - |
Year

0.06

Ouistanding for March 31, 2023 "
I-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3
years

Total

Receivable (A)

36.41

(i) Undisputed Trade reccivables — considered good

{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

{#ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good

(¥} Lhisputed Irade Kecewvables — which have sigmbicant wcrease
in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -- credit impaired

Q.54

ECL Provision on receivables (B)

Reccivables net of provision = (A)-(B)

35.1

" Unbilled amourt due of March 2024 is Nil (March 2023- Nil).
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

11 Lpans (At amortised Cost)
A. Term Loans
(i) Relail loans
(ii) Wholesale loans

Total (A) - Gross
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

(including on loan commitinent)
Total (A) - Net

B. Term Loans

{i) Secured by tangible assets (refer note 49.1.2)
(31) Unsecured

Total (B) - Gross

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
(including on loan commitment)

Total {B) - Net

C. Term Loans

€.I Loans in India

(i} Public Sectors

(ii) Others

Total {C.I) - Gross

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
(including on loan cenunitment)

Total (C.T} - Net

C.II Loans outside India
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

{including on loan commitment)
Total (C.II} - Net

Total: {C.I and C.II)

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3,307.26 3,786.86
4,060.02 [,861.18
7,367.28 5,648.05
(194.34) (204.38)
7.172,94 5,443.67
3,502,07 3,160.67
3,865.21 2,487.38
7,367.28 5,648.05
(194.34) (204.38)
7,172.94 5,443.67
7.367.28 5,648.05
7,367.28 5,648.05
(194.34) {204.38)
7,172.94 5,443.67
7,172.94 5,443.67

11.1. Loans oradvances in the nature of lpans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defired under the Companies Act, 2013),

either severally or jointly with any other persen that are:
(a) repayable on demnand or
(b} without specifying any terins or period of repayment

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Amount of Loan/Advance in|% to the totaf loan and|Amount of Loan/Advance in|% to the total loan
Type of Borrower . .

the nature of Loan|advance in the naturefthe nature of Loan|and advance in the

outstanding of foans outstanding nature of loans
Promoter - - - -
Directors - - - -
KMP's - - - -
Related Parties - - - -
Total - 0% 0 0%




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

11.2. Credit Quality of Assets

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of
impairment allowances. Details of the Company’s internal grading system are explained in Note 49.1 and policies on ECL allowances are set out in Note 3.6.
Refer note 49.1.3 for modified and forbome loans.

(@) Gross earrying amount of loan assets allocated to Stage I, Stage I and Stage IIT
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Stage I Stage II Stage 111 Total Stage | Stage If Stage ITI Total
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing
High grade 6,292.29 - - 6,292.29 4,502,00 - - 4,502.00
Standard grade - 909.99 - 909.99 - 987.59 - 987.59
Non-performing
Iinpaired - - 165.00 165.00 - - 158.46 158.46
Total 6,292,29 209.99 165.00 7,367.28 4,502.00 987.59 158.46 5,648.05
(b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation to loan asscis is as follows:
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Total
Stagel StageIl Stage IIT
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
Particulars carrying for carrying for carrying for carrying for
amount ECL ameunt ECL amount ECL amount ECL
For the year ended March 31, 2024
QOpening Balance 4,502.00 82.08 987.59 86,29 158.46 35.68 5,648.05 204.05
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) 139.73 7.47 (139.73) (7.47) - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (297 (0.05) 2.97 0.05 - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL - Credit (23.11) (0.02) {39.73) (9.22) 62.84 9.24 - -
impaired (Stage 3)
Remeasurement of ECL arising from - (7.35) - 1,34 - 13.64 7.63
transfer of stage (net)
Net new and further lending/ (repayments) 1,687.88 (25.13) 114,17 19.60 (39.64) 11.02 1,762.41 549
Amounts written off (11.23) (1.74) (15.28) (11.21) (16.67) (12.94) {43.18) (25.90)
Loan seld to Asset Recontruction Company - - - - - - - -
Trust and ATF
Closing Balance 6,292.29 55,26 909.99 79.37 165.00 56.64 7,367.28 191.27
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 7,469.23 40.22 3,001.94 389.61 248.05 52.81 10,719.22 482.64
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) 19.98 2.15 {5.42) (0.72) (14.55) (1.43) - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (293.74) (2.51) 308.28 4.35 (14.54) (1.83) - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit (47.05) (0.27) (251.96) (23.81) 299.02 24.07 - B
impaired (Stage 3)
Remeasurement of ECL arsing from (1.78) 21.14 19.32 - 38.68
transfer of stage {net)
Net new and further lending/ (repayments) (2,624.88) 46.65 (2,044.72) (294.89) 691.02 37.06 (3,978.58) (211.19)
Amounts written off (21.53) (2.37) (20.52) (9.39) (18.31) (8.04) (60.35) (19.30)
Loan sold to Asset Recontruction Company - - - - (1,032.23) (86.28)  (1,032.23) (86,28}
Trust and AIF
Closing Balance 4,502.00 32.08 987.59 86.29 158.46 35.68 5,048.06 204.05




Ldelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Contirnied)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

11.3. Credit Quality of exposure (Loan Commitment)

(a)

(b)

Gross carrying amount of loan commitment allocated to Stage I, Stage IT and Stage 111

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Stage I Stage 11 Stage IH Total Stage I Stage 11 Stage [l
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing

High grade 100.06 - - 100.96 116.00 - -

Standard grade - - - - - R -

Substandard grade - - - - - . -
Non-performing

Impaired - - - - - - 0.04

Total

55.55

0.04

Total 100.06 - - 100.06 £16.00 - 0.04

35.59

Reconciiiation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation to of [oan commitment is as follows:

Nen-credit impaired Credit impaired
Stage I Stage I1 Stage 11}

Particulars Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross
carrying for carrying for carrying for carrying
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount

For the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Opening Balance 116.00 0.28 - - 0.04 - 116.04
Transfers:

Transfers to 2 Month ECL (Stage [) - - - - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Siage 2) - - - - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL - Credit - - - - - -

impaired (Stage 3} -
Remeasurement of ECL arising from - - - - - - -
transfer of stage (net)

Net new sanctions and (disbursement} (15.95) 2,83 - - (0.04) - (15.99)

Total

Allowance
for
ECL

2.83

Closing Balance 104,06 3.11 - - - - 100.06

3.11

Fer the Year Ended March 31, 2023

Opening Balance 55.55 0.14 - - 0.04 - 55.59
Transfers:

Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) - - - - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) - - - - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaised (5.38) - - - 5.38 - -
(Stage 3)

Remeasurement of ECL arising from - - - - - - -
transfer of stage (net)

Net new sanctions and (disbursement) 65.83 0.14 - - (5.38) 0.04 60.45

0.14

Closing Balance 116.00 0.28 - - 0.04 0.04 116.04
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12 Investments
As at March 31, 2024 At fair value
Designated at Subtotal Total

Particulars At Amortised cost (1){ Through |Through P&L| fair value 5 = (243+4) At cost (6) (M=

oCI(2) (€] through Profit (1+5+6)

or loss (4)

Security receipts - Measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income (Refer note 1 & 2) - 1,543.92 - - 1,543.92 - £,543.92
Units of AFF - - 673.43 - 673.43 - 673.43
Corporale Bonds - - 1.99 - 1.99 - 1.99
Total - Gross (A) - 1,543.92 67542 - 2,219.34 - 2,219.34
(i) Investiments outside India - - - - - - -
(if) Investment in India - 1,543.92 675.42 - 2219.34 - 2,219,134
Total (B) - 1,543.92 675,42 - 2,219.34 - 2,219.34
Less: Allowance for impainment {C) - - - - - - -
Total Net (A-C) - 1,543.92 675.42 - 2,219.34 - 2,219.34

Note:

1 During the year ended, March 31, 2024, due to the change in the rights attached, the investment in Security Receipts amounting to Rs. 1543.90 miltions, which were
previously measured at fair value through profit and loss account, were derecognized and Invesiment in SRs representing residual interest in the trust {“SR Instrument -
Equity”) have been recognized to be measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCT - Equity).

™

Rs.15.70 million.

During the quarter ended March 31,2024, The company and EFSL discontinued risk and reward agreememnt in respect of security receipts (SR’s} and settled net amount to

As at March 31,2023 At fair value
Designated at Subtotal Total
Particulars At Amortised cost {13 Through OCI| Through P&L |  fair value 5= (2+3+4) Al cast (6) (7=
2) )] through Profit - (1+5+6)
or loss (4)
Security receipts - - 783.61 - 783.61 - 783.61
Units of AIF - - 2,331.79 - 2,331.79 - 2,331.79
Corporate Bonds - - 178.13 - 178.13 - 178.13
Total - Gross {A) - - 3,293.53 - 3,293.53 - 3,293.53
(i) Investments outside India - - - - - - -
{ii) Investment in India - - 3,293.53 - 3,293.53 - 3,293.53
Total (B) - - 3,293.53 - 3,293.53 - 3,293.53
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - - - - - -
Total Net (A-C) - - 3,293.53 - 3,293.53 - 3,293.53

Note:

I During the quarter and the year ended March 31 2023, the Company had sold certain financial assets amounting to Nil and Rs.68.63 crores (net of provisions) respectively,

10 asset reconsiructions company trusts (‘ARC Trusts’) and acquired security receipts {(SR) amounting to Nil and Rs.62.22
AS 109 — ‘Financial Instruments’, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,
de-recognition of such financial assets from the Company’s financial result. EFSL, the holding Company had undertaken substantiaily all risks aad rew:

such financial assets. As a result, these financial assets were de-recognized in the Company’s financial result.

8]

crores respectively from these ARC Trusts. Ind
2013, requires substantiatly all risks and rewards to be transferred for the purpose of
ards in respect of

During the year ended March 31, 2023, ERFL has received confirmation that binding bids received by assets reconsiruction companies (*ARCs’ of ‘trusis’) & Alternative
Investment Furd {AIF) about transfer of underlying financial assets for which seitlement v
by the Board of Directors, accordingly, we have recorded receivable against these transfer of Investment w

vere execuied post the balance sheet date but before approval of financial results
as Rs. 543.79 millions. As per Ind AS 10, Events after the

reporting period, which require that, event that provide evidence of condition existed at the end of reporting period, and as per Ind 109- Financial Instruments, which
require that, financial instruments be classified and measured based on their economic substance,
a company's financia! position and risk exposure related 10 financial instruments, accordingly,
management has recorded as recoverable from trusts and AlFs and derecognised the financial assets.

vather than their legaj fonn in achieving a more accurate representation of
on account subsequent receipt of payment from ARC Trusts and AIF ,




3 Alternative Investment Fund: The Company made investment in AIF, in the view of Ind AS 109 and accounting policy of the company from derecegnition aspect,
considered some important points as below mentioned:

+  Company has wansferred somne of these loan asseis directly 1o the AIF where there are other assets were also lying in the funds, also there are customers who paid to
Company and in-turm Company invested in AlF,

« AIF also has other investor who hold some percentage holding in AIF.

+  AIF has right to appoint investiment manager. Investment manager control and take decision to manage the assets.

«  The instrument in which the company invested in AIF is different than the previous hotding as loan assets,

+  AIF evaluate all the underlying assets of the fund and then declare NAV per unit.

+  There are other investors who are holding some percentage in AIF while company holds below 30%.

+  These instrument as classified as level 3 instrument as FVTPL and any fair value gain or loss recognised in Profit and Loss account.

Considering above mentioned facts, the Company has not retained any control where company has practical ability to see the assets in entirety although some risk and
sewards are not transferred. Such Derecognition of assets from the books of the Company, is in line with Ind AS 109. Also, looking the facts that AIF has other assets in the
fund and NAV of the units is declared considering all the assets under management of such fund. Hence Company is not holding all the risk and rewards of the transferred
asscts rather it is distributed in the percentage of holding and Company is hoiding below 50% of the pool of assets instead of majority helding in particular assets.
Accordingly, the Company in the view that it is appropriately derecognised from the books of the Company.

12.1 Investments Details

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Face Value/ Face Value/
NAY Quantity Amount NAV Quantity Amount
Security receipts - Measured at fair value through
Other Comprehensive Encome (Refer nete 1 &2)
EARC Trust SC 373 - - 0.00 186.69 225,250 42.05
EARC Trust SC 385 - - 0.00 628.95 1,79,783 113.07
EARC Trust SC 416 - - 0.00 981.50 98,842.00 97.01
Omkara PS 04 Trast - - 0.00 974.93 2,36,216 230.3G
Oinkara PS34/2021-22 - - 0.00 1,000.00 54,839.00 54,85
EARC Trust SC - 378 - - 0.00 454.67 22,780.00 10.36
EARC Trust SC 374 - - 000 481.36 63,106.00 30.38
EARC Trust SC 417 - - 0.00 264,41 237,851,007 205.61
EARC TRUST SC - 3%4 TI0.04 424,123 304.96 - - -
EARC Trust SC 251 723.80 17,00,000 123896
1,543.92 783.64
Units of AIF
LICHFL Housing & Infrastructure Fund 10418 § 13,14.276,55 136.92 106,51 13,40,277 142,74
EDELWEISS VALUE AND GROWTH FUND 1,14,261.99 2,665.14 304.52 | 1,17,574.91 3,257.14 | 38295
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund 1,93,474.7% 1,199.06 231,99 1,85,753.25 1,266.00 § 247.81
Alternative Investment FUND (AIF) - - - 6,410.16 | 2,43,091.00 | 1,558.24
673.43 2,331,75
Corporate Bonds
9.65% ECL Finance Limited 06.08.2023 Bonds - - - 1,000 14,936 16,51
10.00% Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 19.07.2026 NCD 1,000 1,798 1.98 1,000 1,798 1.98
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 06.08.2023 Bonds - - - 1,600 3,834 5.86
10.40% ECL Finance Limited 04.01.2024 Bonds - - - 1,000 72 0.30
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 04.01.2024 Bonds - - - 1,000 218 0.33
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 23.05.2024 Bonds 1,000 3 0.00 1,000 3 0.0¢
10.60% ECL Finance Limited 04.01.2029 Bonds 1,000 1 0.00 1,000 1 .00
925% ECL Finance Limited 06-Aug-2023 Bonds - - - 1,000 1,853 1.79
10.18%% Edel Finance Company Limited 27-Apr-2027 Bonds - - - 10,00,060 £40 150.85
1.99 178.13
2,219.34 3,293.53
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As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
13 Other financial assets
(unsecured, censidered good)

Security Deposits 10.22 13.95
Advances to others 7.92 418.10
Receivable from Frust - 393.54
Deposits- others 0.06 0.09
Margin placed with broker 0.03 0.51

18.23 826.19

i4 Current tax assets {net)

Advance income taxes 37.37 72.53
(net of provision for tax Rs. 162.19 million, previous year Rs. 200.18
million)

17.37 72.53

15 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax asscts

Loans
Provision for expected credit loss 47.34 51.43
Unamortised processing fees - EIR on lending 1.53 3.20
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation - 5.04
Employee benefit obligations
Provision for compensated absences 0.57 0.56
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2.29 2,29
Lease liability 1.81 6.45
Others 372 14.07
57.26 83.04
Deferred tax liabilitics
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation 1,44 -
Investments and other financial instruments
Unamortised loan origination costs - EIR on lending 2.44 4.55
Recognition of Interest Strip on assignment deals 22.28 25.57
Acerued Interest on Stage 3 receivables - -
Bomowings
Effective interest rate on financial linbilities 8.15 10.36
Right-of-use Asset (ROLY 1.69 6.02
Others - -
36.00 46.50
21.26 36.54

Note: For disclosure relating to movement in deferred tax asscts / liabilities, refer note 38.3.
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16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Net Block
- As at Additions Disposals As at As at Charge Disposals As at
£ f A M

Description of Assets April 01, during the during the March | April01, forthe duringthe March 31, Ag?t ;ngh

2023 year year 31, 2024 2023 year year 2024 i
Property, Plant and Equipment
L.and* 0.37 - - 0.37 - - - - 0.37
Leasehold improvements 373 - 1.73 2.00 3.54 0.08 [.73 1.89 0.11
Furniture and Fixtures 1.99 -0.04 1.32 0.63 1.51 .07 1.05 0.53 0.10
Vehicles - - - - - - - - -
Office equipment 407 0.05 1.72 2.40 3.65 0.11 1.61 2,15 0.25
Computers 13.37 - 0.42 12.95 12.26 .33 G.39 12.20 0.715
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) 138.66 - 13.82 124.84 114.74 3.40 - 118.14 £.70
Total 162.19 .01 19.01 143,19 135.70 3.99 4.78 134.91 8.30

17 Intangible Assets Under Development
(i) Intangible Assets Under Development Agcing Schedule:-
Amount in Intangible Assets Under

Intangible Assets Under Development for a period of March 31, 2024
Development Less tt More Total

eSS AR ) Years| 2-3 years | than3

1 year

years

Project in progress
Digital Lending Platform (DLF) 12.99 - - - 12.99
Total 12.99 - - - 12.99

(iiy For Intangible Assets Under Development, whose completion is ov

helow schedule:-

erdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan, refer

To be completed in
Intangible Assets Under More
Total
Development Less than 1-2 Years| 2-3years | than3l o
1 year
Years
Digital Lending Platform (DLP) - - - - -
Total - - - - -
18 Other Intangible Assels
Gross Block “Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment | Net Block
o As at Addifions Disposals As at As at Charge Disposals Asat
D t T Asset: M
eseription of Asscts April 1, duringthe during the March | April01, forthe duringthe March 31, Ai?t;');;m
2023 year year 31,2024 2023 year year 2024 ’
Other Intangible Asscts
Software 128.09 -0.95 - i27.14 15.83 22.28 - 38.11 89.04
Total 128.09 -0.95 - 127.14 15.83 22,28 - 38.11 89.04
Note:

*Charged against secured redeemable non-convertible debentures
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16 Property, Plant and Equipment (Previous Year)

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and Impainnent Net Block
L Asal Additions  Disposals Asat Asat Disposals Asat Asat
D 1 f Assets
escription o Asse April0], duringthe duringthe March31, | April01, C{‘;i’gga?f during the  March 31, | March 31,
2022 year year 2023 2022 4 year 2023 2023
Property, Plant and Equipment
Land* 0.37 - - 0.37 - - - - 0.37
Leasehold improvements 3.89 - 0.16 3.73 3.25 045 0.16 3.54 0.19
Fumiture and Fixtures 2.40 - 041 1.99 1.63 0.19 0.31 1.51 048
Office equipment 4.4 0.14 0.81 4.07 4.15 0.26 0.76 3.65 0.42
Computers 17.12 (0.14) 3.61 13.37 15.04 0.63 341 1226 1.[1
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) 119.59 19.53 0.46 138.66 106.54 2.20 - 114.74 2392
Total 148.11 19.53 5.45 162.19 130.61 9.73 4.04 135.70 26.49
17 Intangible Assets Under Development (Previous Year)
(i} Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule:-
Amount in Intangible Assets Under Development for
. i 2
Intangible Assets Under Development a period of March 31, 2073 Total
Less than 1 More than 3
12 Years | 2-3 years
year years
Troject in progress
Digital Lending Platform (DLE)* - - - - -
Total - - - - -
(ii} For Intangible Assets Under Development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared 1o its original plan, refer below schedule:-
To be completed in
Intangible Assets Under Development Less than 1 More than 3|  Total
1.2 Years | 2-3 years
year years
Digital Lending Platform (DLP) - - - - -
Total - - - - -
18  Other Intangible Assets (Previous Year}
Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation and limpainment Net Block
. Asat Additions  Disposals Asat Asat Disposals Asat Asat
D It f Assets
escriplion of ASSE April 01,  during the during the | March 31, April 01, (‘tl}l‘aergeai;or during the | March 31, March 31,
2022 year year 2023 2022 ye year 2023 2023
QOther Intangible Assets
Software 15.78 112.31 - 128.09 15.01 0.82 - 15.83 112.26
Total 15.78 112.31 - 128.09 15.01 0.82 - 15.83 112.26
Note:

*Charged against secured redeemable non-convertible debentures
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As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
19 Other non-financial assets
Input tax credit (Goods and Services Tax) 99,35 98.58
Prepaid expenscs 3.29 11.69
Advances to vendors 159 1.78
Advances to employees 0.36 0.27
104.59 11231
20  Trade Payables
Tradé payables to non-related parties 91.28 54.04
Trade payables to related parties 86,42 3.23
177.70 57.27
Note:
(1) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 177.69 57.27
enterprises and smali enterprises
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.91 -

Trade Payables includes 0.01 million amount payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Mediwum
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, {Previous Year Nil) Interest paid by the company during the year to “Suppliers”
registered under this Act is 0.02 million (Previous year: Nil). The aforementioned is based on the responses received by
the company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

20.1 Trade Payable Apeing :-

COutstanding for March 31, 2024 #
Particulars More Total
Less than 1 1-2 2-3
Year Years years than 3
years
(i) MSME 0.01 0.00 - - 0.01
(ii) Others 170.92 0.00 1.06 570 177.68
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others u u u - -
Total 170.94 0.01 1.06 570 17170
Trade Payable Ageing :-
Qutstanding for March 31, 2023*
Particulars More Total
Less than 1 1.2 2.3 years| than 3
Year Years
years
(i) MSME - - - - -
(i) Others 50.80 1.09 1.04 4.34 57.27
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Qthers - - N - -
Total 50.80 1.09 1.04 4.34 57.27
¥ Unbilled amount due of March 2024 is Rs.86.52 million (March 2023- Rs.38.54 million).
21 Debt securities (In India)
(At amortised cost) As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-convertible redeemable debentures
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - Unsecured 283.25 -
Publicly placed non-convertible debentures - Secured 883.16 889.88
1,166.41 889.88

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 53
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22 Borrowings other than debt securities (In India)
(At amortised cost)

Term Loan (secured)

From Banks

From Financial Institution
Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 52
Bank overdraft (Securcd)

Bank overdraft is in nature of committed Cash Credit lines repayable on demand (Interest
rate range, March-24 7.95% - 11.55%, March-23 7.95% - 11.55% )

Loan & Advances From Edel Land Limited
Others

22(a) Wilful Defaulter

Asat Asat

iviarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
180.34 266.39

180.34 266.39

74.13 35576

74.13 355.76

- 047

- 83.28

254.47 705.60

The company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

22(h) Compliance to the borrower's terms & periodical filling of statements of current assets

Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets as mentioned in Note 22 above
(i) Company has filed quarterly returns or statements of current assets in timely manner an are in agreement with the books of accounts

(ii} There are no material discrepancies in quaterly returns or statements filled.

23 Subordinated liabilities (In India)
(At amortised cost)

Non-convertible subordinated debentures
Non-convertible perpetual debentures

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 54 & 55

24  Other financial liabilities

Securitisation lability

Investor payable on assigned loans

Lease linbilities

Payable to employees

Book overdraft

Debenture application money received pending allotment
Other payable

1,774.74 1731.84
458.88 458.76
2,233.62 2190.60
492.20 813.50
40.30 24.18
7.19 25.62
31.88 50.63
3.96 4.61
0.13 0.13
122.07 103.26
697.72 1021.92
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25 Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for taxation
{net of advance tax Rs. 479.9 million, previous year Rs. 411.83 million)

26 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 42)
Gratuity
Compensated leave absences

Others

27  Other non-financial liabilities

Revenue received in advance
Payable to others
Statutory dues payable

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
51.49 59.17
51.49 59.17
9,11 9.09
2.27 223
0.08 1.63
11.38 12.95
- 0.11
7.98 7.70
33.24 33.53
41.22 41.34
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As at

March 31, 2024

28  Equity share capital

Asat
March 31,2023

Authorised :
500.00 500.00
5,00,00,000 (Previous year: 5,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each
500.006 500.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
4,29,50,000 (Previous year: 4,29,50,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10, fully 429.50 429.50
paid-up
429.50 429,50
(a) Movement in share capital :
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No of shares Amount  Noofshares Amount
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 4,29,50,000 429.50 4.29,50,000  429.50
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,29,50,000 429.50 4,20,50,000 429,50

(b) ‘Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held, In
the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, afler distributéon of

all preferential amounts.

() Shares held by Promoters/holding/uliimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries

% Change Asat Asat
during the March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
year No of shares %  No of shares %
Edeleap Securities Limited (Holding company ** - 3,02,58,333 70.45% 3,02,58,333 70.45%
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Ultimate holding company?} - - - - -
Edelweiss Finvest Limited(Amalgameted with Edef Finance Campany - 30,00,000 6.98% 10,00,000 6.98%
Limited) (Fellow subsidiary) N
Feap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) (Fellow - 96,91,667 22.57% 9691667 22.57%
subsidiary)*
- 4,29,50,000 100.00% 4.29,50,000  100.00%

#*Includes 6 Equity shares held by nominees of Edelcap Securities Limited.

(d) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment.
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29

29.1.

(@)

(b}

(<)

&)

(e)

N

Other Equity

Capital reserve

Securities premium

Statutory reserve under section 43-1C
Debenture redemption reserve
Deemed capital contribution - Equity
Retained earnings

Note: For movement in Other Equity, refer 'Statement of changes in Equity’.
Nature and purpose of Reserves

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the gains of capital nature which is not freely available for distribution.

Securities Premium

Asat Asat

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
8.18 8.18
3,112,08 3,112.08
437.23 408.37
22.91 22.91

5.94 5.94
1,495.07 1,379.52
5,081.40 4,937.00

Securities preminm is used to record the premium on issue of shares. Balance in Securities premium can be utilised only for limited purposcs such as

issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Aet, 2013.

Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

Reserve created under section 45-1C of the Rescrve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty pe

disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

r cent of its net profit every year as

The Company being an NBFC is required to create and maintain debenture redemption reserve (DRR) equivalent to 25% of the public issue of

debentures, as required by Companies Act, 2013, The amounts credited to the DRR may not be utilised except
redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture redemption reserve to retained earnings
amendment to the Companies Act 2013, NBFCs are no longer required 1o create and maintain DRR. Accordingly,

on redemption of such debentures. On
. However, as per the recent
the Company has not created

incremental DRR on existing public issue of debentures, post the said amendment, though the Company continu¢s to maintain the DRR created

earlier till the maturity of these debentures.

Deemed capital contribution - Equity

This reserve relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by

Retained Earnings
Retained carnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed eamings after taxes.

the parent company under its employee share option plan.
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30

31

32

33

Interest Income {at amortised cost)

Inter¢st on Loans

[nterest income on Investments

Interest on deposits with bank

Other interest income

Other interest income on direct assignment

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income

Net gain/loss on fair value changes

On trading portfolic

Imvestment

Profit / (loss) on trading of securities (FVTPL)
Profit on sale of mutual fund units (FVTPL}
Profit on sale of equity shares (FVTPL)

On Others
Gain / {loss) on Security Receipts / AlF

Fair value changes
Realised
Un-realised

Other income
Income on Business Services

Interest Income - On Tax Refund
Others

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 3§, 2023
816.10 1,262.46
4.49 15.19
8.80 6.29
1.11 0.01
73,56 67.24
904.06 1,351.19
20.49 3140
20.49 3140
(1.03) (11.31)
3.01 -
17.93 2.06
125.76 (86.34)
145.67 (95.60)
112.27 {42.15)
33.40 (52.85)
145.67 (95.60)
8.63 2.74
4.05 3.52
2.55% 396
15.23 10.22
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34 Finance costs (at amortised cost)

35

36

Interest on borrowings

Interest on debt securities

[nterest on subordinated liabilities

Other interest expense (including bank charges)
Interest on lease Habilities

Impairment on financial instruments

Loss on sale of loan assets sold to assets reconstruction company (trust)
Bad- debis and advances written off

Provision for expected credit [oss (at amertised cost)

(including on loan commitments)

Employec benefit expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (refer note 42)

Share based payments to cmployees
{Refer note below)

StafT welfare expenses

Note:

Tor the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
131.94 218.77
81.74 215.21
210.68 205.42
2.88 6.52
1.04 1.93
428.29 647.86
{1.31) 89.62
22.58 7.81
{29.39) (286.91)
(7.73) (189.48)
199.00 211.17
10.61 11.30
2.68 2.55
0,21 234
5.36 8.97
217.87 236.33

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL”) the ultimate holding Company has granted an Employec stock option plan
(ESOPY Stock Appreciation Rights (ESAR) option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to
Company’s employees, Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options /rights ,
Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.
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37

371

3.2

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Directors' sitting fees

Legal and professional fees

Printing and stationery

Rent, Rates and taxes (net of recovery)
Repairs and maintenance

Computer expenses

Corporate social responsibility (refer note 37.2)
Office expenses

Postage and courier

Goods & Service tax expenses

Stamp duty

Auditors' remuneration (refer note 38.1)
Travelling and conveyance
Warehousing charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Auditors' remuneration
As an Audifor
Statutory Audit
Limited Review
Certification
Towards reimbursement of expenses

Details of CSR Expenditure:
As per the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013

(a) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred
Amount spent (paid in cash)
(i) Construction/ Acquisition of any assets
(ii) For purpose other than (i} above
Amount to be spent (yet to be paid in cash)
(1) Construction/ Acquisition of any assets
(if) For purpose other than (i) above
{c) Shortfall at the end of the year
{d) Total of previous years shortfall
(e) Reason for shortfall
(f) Details of related party transactions
Name of Related Party
Relationship

(g) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by

entering into a contractual obligation
(h) Nature of CSR activities
For the year ended March, 31 2024

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

0.24 18.59

2.08 3.02

1.16 026

0.91 1.06

134.56 76.06

0.57 0.73

43.81 20.82

0.61 5.39

7.26 7.79

4.95 4.50

4.54 25.49

0.12 0.12

20.13 42.99

4.35 2.10

21 2.33

8.88 6.69

0.09 0.04

2.53 2.97

238.91 220.93

0.65 0.65

1.05 1.05

0.28 0.36

0.13 0.07

2.11 2.33

4.95 4.50

4.95 4.50

4.95 4.50

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Edelgive Foundation Edelgive Foundation
Fellow Subsidiary  Fellow Subsidiary

For the causes of Education and Community Resilience and Climate Action {CRCA).

For the year ended March, 31 2023

For the causes of Education and Community Resilience and Climate Action {CRCA).
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38

38.1.

38.2

Income tax

The components of income tax expense:

Current tax
Short/{cxcess) provision for earfier years
Deferred tax

Total tax charge

Current tax
Deferred tax

Reconciliation of total tax charge

Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements

Tax rate {in percentage)
Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate
Short/(excess) provision for earlier years
Effect of nen—deductible expenses:
Qthers

Tax charge for the year recorded in P&L

Effective izx rate

For the period ended  For the peried ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
30.11 12,63

(7.70) -

15.26 80.52

37.66 93.15

2240 12.63

15.26 80.52

For the period ended  For the period ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2623
181.84 371.01

25.17% 25.17%

45.77 93.38

(7.71) -

(0.40) (0.23)

37.66 93.15

20.71% 25.11%




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continned)

(Currency : indian rupees in millions)
38 Income tax

18,3, Movement of Deferred Tax assets / liabilities

Deferred tax

Deferred tax

asset / In profit or InoCl Directlyin  Total asset /
(liability) loss equity movement (liability)
{Opening) {Closing)
For the year ended March 31, 2024 -
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for expected credit loss 51.43 {4.10) - 4.10) 47.33
Retirement Benefits (4.21) 7.08 - 7.08 287
Equity instrument measured at FVOCE - - - -
Difference between book and tax WDV 5.04 (6.48) - (6.48) (1.44)
(including intangibles)
[ease liability 6.45 {4.64) - {4.64) 1.81
Others 2113 (17.41) - (17401} 3.72
Effective interest rale on financial assets (1.35} 4,45 - 0.45 (0.90)
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Stage 3 Income recoganition - - - - -
Interest spread on assignment transactions (25.5T 3.29 - 329 (22.28)
Effective interest rate on financial (10.36) 2.21 - 221 {8.15)
Right-of-use Asset (ROL) (6.02) 4.33 - 433 (1.69)
Tatal 36.54 (15.27) - (15.27) 21,26
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Deferred taxcs in relation to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for expected credit loss 121.51 (70.08) - (70.08) 51.43
Retirement Benefits 0.65 {4.86) - (4.86) (421}
Difference between book and tax WDV 10.03 (4.99) - (4.99) 5.04
(including intangibles)
Lease liability 4.06 2,39 - 2.39 6.45
Others 8.67 12.46 - 12.46 21.13
Effective interest rate on financial assets 0.23 (1.58) - (1.58) (1.35}
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Stage 3 Income recognition - - - - -
Interest spread on assignment transactions (13.44) (12.13) - (12.13) (25.57)
Effective interest rate on financial (11.37) 1.0} - 1.01 (10.36)
Right-of-use Asset (ROU} (3.28) {2.74) - (2.74) (6.02)
Total 117.06 {80.52) - {80.52) 36.54
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398 Cash Flow Disclosure

Change in Liabilitics arising from financing acitivies

. As at April Changes in As at March
Particulars 01, 2053 Cash Flows Fair value Others* 31,2024
Debt Securities 889.88 300.00 - (23.40) 1,166.41
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 705.60 (451.80) - 0.67 254.47
Subordinated Liabilitics 2,190.60 - - 43.02 2,233.62
Securitization Hability 813.50 {813.50) - 40220 49220
Eease Liability 25.62 {4.41) - (14.01) 7.19

4,625.18 (969,71) - 498.42 4,153.90

. As at April Changes in As at March

Particulars oL, 2052 Cash Flows Fair value Others* 31,2023
Debt Securities 2,804.43 (1,872.58) - (41.97) 889.88
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 1,774.29 (1,073.12) - 4,42 705.60
Subordinated Liabilities 2,153.18 - - 3742 2,190.60
Securitization liability 284.H (284.11) - 813.50 813.50
Lease Liability 16.12 (9.62} - 19.12 25.62

7.032.13 (3,239.43) - 832.49 4,625.18

*Includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees ete,
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49, Earnings per Share

41.

{b)

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Net Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Campany - A 144.18 277.86
Weighted average Numnber of Shares

- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 42.95 4295
- Number of equity shares issued during the year - -

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 42.95 4295

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based 42.95 42.95
on the date of issue of shares) - B

Nominal value of equity shares 10.00 10.00
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) (A/B) 3.36 6.47

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive/ potential equity shares issued or outstanding as
at the year end.

Contingent Liability and Commitment:

Contingent Liability
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Taxation matters 5.50 0.57
Litigation pending against the company Nil Nil

The Company’s pending litigations mainly comprise of claims against the Company pertaining t© proceedings pending with
Income Tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements.
The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s

financial position and results of operations.

Commitment:
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 9.47 -
Loan sanctioned pending disbursements 100.06 116.04

AIF Fund pending commitments 988.05 65.97
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42.

@)

(b)

i)

(Gi)

(i)

Gv)

Retirement and other employce benefits

Defined contribution plan - Provident funds

In accordance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the
provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to
a recognized provident fund administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The employees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company
contributes an equal amount.

The Company recognised as of March 31,2024 Rs. 10.11 millions {March 31,2023 : Rs 10.30 millions) for provident find in the Statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

In accordance with the Payinent of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering all employces. The plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
gratuity benefit is partially provided through funded plan and annual expense is charged to the statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) for gratuity were carried cut as at March 31, 2024
The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related curent service cost and past service ¢ost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit
Methad.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s
financial statements as at balance sheet date:

As at As at
March 31,2824  March 31,2023
Present valuc of defined benefit obligations (A) 9,11 9.00
Fair Value of plan assets (B) - .
Present value of defined benefit obligations (A-B) 9.11 9.09
Net deficit / {assets) are analysed as:
Liabilitics 9.11 9.09

Assets - -

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability:
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit {asset) liability and its components:
Net defined benefit (asset}

liability
March 31,2024 March 31. 2023 March 31,2024  March 31, 2023 March 31.2024 March 31,2023

Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets

Present value of defined benefit obligations (epening) 9,09 8.71 - - 9.09 8.71
Current service cost 2.09 2.06 - - 2.09 2.06
Past service cost - . - - -
Interest cost 0,59 0.50 - - .59 0.50
11.77 11.26 - - 11.77 11.26

Other comprehensive Income
Remeasurement Actuarial loss (gain) arising from :

Experience 0.05 (0.20} - - 0.05 (020)
Financial assumptions 0.58 (0.68) - - 0.58 {0.68)
Expected return from plan assels - - - - - -
0.63 (0.88) - - 0.63 (0.88)
Others
Transfer In/ (Out) (0.73) (0.28) - - (0.73) (0.28)
Contributions by Employer - - - - - -
Benefits paid (2.56) (1.01) - - (2.56) (1.01)
(3.29) (1.29) - - {3.29) (1.29
Closing Balance (i} + (ii) + (iii) 0,11 9.09 - - 9.11 9.09
Represented by

Net defined benelit asset - -
Net defined benefit liability 9.1t 9.09




Components of defined benefit plan cost:
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

(i) Recognised in Statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 2.09 2,06
[nterest cost 0.59 0.50
Expected return on plan assets - -
[*ast service cost - -
2.68 2.55

(ii) Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasirement of net defined benefit liability/(asset) 0.63 (0.88)
Return on plan assets excluding net interest - -

0.63 (0.88)
Total {i) + (i) 3.3 1.67
Actuarial assumptions:
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Discount Rate 7.00% 7.10%
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal/Attition Rate (based on categories) 16.00% 16.00%
Expected return on plan Assets (p.a} NA NA
Mortality Rate TIALM 2012- 1ALM 2012-
14(Ultimate) 14(Ultimate)
Expected weighted average remainin working lives of employecs 4 Years 4 Years
Sensitivity analysis:
As at March 31, 2024 As al March 31, 2023
increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate (+/- 1%) 0.57 {0.52) 0.56 (0.52)
Discount Rate (+/- 1%6) : (0.52) 0.57 (0.51) 0.56
Withdrawl Rate (+/- 1%} - - 0.00 (0.00)

Monrtality (increase in expected lifetime by } year) - -
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) - -

The sensitivity is performed on the DBO at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameters constant. There are no
changes from the previous period to the methods and assumptions underlying the sensitivity analysis.

Asset liability comparisons: As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31,2023
Present value of DBO 9.11 9.09
Fair Value of Plan assets - -
Net (Assets)/Liabilitiy 9,11 9.09

(¢} Compensated absences :

The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method based on actuarial vatuation. The
leave encashment on separation is paid on basic salary.
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43, Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilitics analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. With
regard to loans and advances to customers, the company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for contractual

maturity analysis.
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Particulars Within 12 After 12 Total Within [2 After 12 Total
months months months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 357.94 - 357.94 267.13 - 267.13
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents 102.23 - 102.23 §19.37 - 119.37
Trade receiveables 0.69 - 0.69 3521 - 35.21
Loans 3,838.75 3,334.19 7,172.94 2,797.17 2,646.50 5,443.67
Investments - 2,219.34 2,219.34 178.13 3,115.40 3,203.53
Other financial assets 8.13 10.10 18.23 811.74 14.45 826.19
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net} - 37.37 37.37 - 72.53 72.53
Deferred tax assets {net) - 21.26 21,26 - 36.54 36.54
Property, Plant and Equipment - 8.30 8.30 - 26.49 26.49
Intangible assets under development - 12,99 12.99 - 0.060 0.00
Other Intangible assets - 89.04 89.04 - 112.26 11226
Other non-financial assets 104.59 - 104,59 13.73 98.58 1i2.31
Total Assets 4,412.33 5,732.58 10,144.92 4722248 . 612276 10,345.23
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 177.79 - 177.70 5127 - 57.27
Debt securities 0.2¢ 1,166.12 1,166.41 7.45 88242 §89.83
Borrowings (other than debt securities} 254.47 - 254.47 589.35 116.25 705.60
Subordinated Liabilitics 74.58 2,159.04 2,233.62 73717 2,116.83 2,190.60
Other financial liabilities 485.89 211.84 697.72 578.42 443.50 1,021.92
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 51.49 - 51.49 59.17 - 59.17
Provisions 1.48 9.90 11.38 §2.95 - 12.95
Other non-financial labilities 41.22 - 41,22 41.34 - 41,34
Totat Liabilities 1,087.12 3,546.90 4,634.02 1,419.72 3,559.01 4,978.73

Net 3,325.21 2,185.68 5,510,940 2,802.76 2,563.75 5,366.50
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44, Segment reporting

45,

(i

=

The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India a5 a Non Banking Financial Company engage
business. Accordingly, there is no separate reportable segment and hence no disclosure is made under Ing AS 108 -

presented as the Company operates only in India.

Related Party Disclosures

List of related parties and relationship:

Name of related parties by whom control is exercised

Fellow Subsidiaries
(with whom transactions have taken place}

Feltow Associates {From March 26, 2021 to 29th March, 2023)

Key Management Personnel

Independent Directer

(i) Transactions with related parties :

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited Ultimate holding Company
Edelcap Securities Limited (Holding company}

ECL Finance Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited

Edelweiss Invesunents Limited

Ecap Equitics Limited (Formecly known as Edc] Land Lirnited)

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Asset Management Litnited

Fdehveiss Asset Reconstraction Company Limited

Zuno General Insurance Limited (fonmerly knows as Edelweiss General Insurance
Company Limited}

Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited(fonmerly Ecap Equities)

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edetweiss Tokfo Life Insurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Value And Growth Fund

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund

India Credit Investment Fund il

Nuvama Weadth Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Finance & Investments
Limited)

Ms. Shilpa Gatiani {wef Fcb 6, 2020) (Resigned w.e.f, Qctober 31, 2023y
Mr. Phanindranath Kakarla (wef Sep 13, 2020}

Ms. Shama Asnani {wef Jan 4 2014)

Mr.Hitesh Bhadada (wef July 26, 2022)

Mr.Manoj Agarwal (wef Feb 1, 2023}

Ms.Reema Shah (wef Aug 1, 2025+

Dr. Vinod Jungja (wef May 13, 2021)
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (wef Apr 12, 2020)

Non Executive Director
Nen Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Chief Financial Officer
Manager

Company Seceretary

Independent Direetor
Independent Director

d in the business of fending and financing . A} other activities of the company revolve around the main
‘Operating Segment Reporting'. Further, segmentation based on geography has not been

Nature of Transaction

Related Party Name

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Capital Account Transaction during the year:
Capital Account Transactions:
i oans taken from Aaxinwen transaction during the year
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services 1imited - 1,750.00
ECL Finange Limited - 656.00
Ecap Equities Limnited({Formerly known as Edel Land Limited} - 400,00
Voltme of transaciions during the year
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiled - 1,750.00
ECL Finance Limited - 1,890.00
Ecap Equities Limited{Formerly knowr as Edel Land Limited) - 550.00
45, Relzted Party Disclosures
Loans repaid to AMaximum transaciion during the year
Fdetweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 1,750.00
ECL Finance Limited - 1,260.00
Ecap Equities Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Liimited) - 550.00
Velume of ransections during the year
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services 1.imiled - 1,750.00
ECL Finance Limited - 1,8%0.00
Ecap Equilies Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited} - 330.00
Loans given to Maximtem transaction during the year
ECL Finance Limited - 150.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 250,00 250.60
Ecap Equities Limited(Fonmerly known as Edel Land Limited} 500.00 970.00
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited{formerly Ecap Equities) 1,250.00 450.00
Folume of rensactions during the year
ECL Finance Limited - 260.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 250,00 250.00
Ecap Equities Lirited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 1,000.00 1,270.00
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited(formerly Ecap Equities) 2,500.00 45000
Loans repaid by Maximeem transaction during the vear
ECL Finance Limited - 150.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 250,00 1,000.00
FEcap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 1,000.00 476.00
ECAP Securities and Invesiments Limited(formerly Ecap Equities) - 450.00
Vafume of ransactions di,
ECL Finance Limited - 340.00
Edejweiss Rural & Col 250,00 3.726.00
Ecap Equities Limited( 1,360.00 970,00
ECAP Securities and In - 45000




45.

Nature of Transaction

Related Party Name

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Loan portfolio soid under direet assigniment ECI. Finance Limited - 811.61
Securities Purchase Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 1,671.49
Ecap Equities Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) - 634.95
Redemption of Non convertible debenture held by (Face Value) Edelweiss Rural & Corporaie Services Limited
Redemption of Non convenible debenturc held by (Face Vaiue) ECL Finance Limited - 2
12.51 12,
ECL Finance Limited
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 7.66
Redemption of Non convertible debenture held in (Face valuc) ECL Finance Limited 2513 14.75
Non convertible debentures (Loans) purchased from ECL Finance Limited 1,487.21 4,166.40
Mon convertible debentures purchased from Edel Finance Company Limited - 140,00
Sale of Security Receipts EARC Trust - §C 383 - 61.63
EARC Trust - SC 416 - 52.65
EARC Trust - SC 417 - 111.46
ECL Finance Limited 520.60 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,602.03 -
India Credit Investment Fund 11 - 4,252.20
Sale of securities Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Finance & Investments 5.69
Limited} (Associate 1ill 29th March, 2023) “ -
ECL Finance Limited 139.53 178.13
Related Party Disclosures
Curzent Account Transactions:
Shared premises cost received fiom (net) Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - 2.50
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.0%
Interest income on loan to ECL Finance Limited - 243
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 6.00 14597
Ecap Equities Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 121.56 2072
ECAP Securities and lavestments Limited(formerly Ecap Equities) 542 1097
Interest Income on Non convertible Debentures ECL Finance Limited 1.35 3.71
Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited} 0.18 0.51
Edel Finance Company Limited 2.93 10.85
Service charges received Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited} 0.42 0.74
Reimbursement of ARC management fee from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 5.57 1L.66
Shared premises cost paid {net) ECL Finance Limited 22.07 17.94
Nido Home Finance Limited (Forrnerly known a3 Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited} 8.07 -
Ecap Equities Limited({Formerly known as Edel Land Linsted) 0.78 -
Cost reimbursement paid 1o (net) Edelweiss Fingncial Services Limited 0.18 0.86
Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 0.03 0.30
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 0.01 -
ECL Finance Limited 0.86 0.51
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly kncwn as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 1.64 2.40
Cost reiinbursement received frem (net) Edel Finance Comgpany Ltd - 0,02
Management Fees paid 1o Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Cornpany Limited 1.63 3.94
Interest Expense on loan from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 225
ECL Finanrce Limited - 24,36
Ecap Equitics Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) - 0.19
tmerest Expense on Non convertible debentures Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.95 1,62
Edel Finance Company Limited 6.94 6.88
ECL Finance Limited 645 1.53
Ecap Equities Limited{Formerly knewn as Edel 1.and Limited) 1.64 0.72
Interest Expenses on Sub-debt Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 37.86 3387
Brokerape paid Edelweiss Investment Limited 6.0t 0.01
Enterprise Service charge paid io Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiiled 1.4 0.76




45. Related Party Disclosures

45,

Nature of Transaction

Related Party Name

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Advisory fees paid to
Arranger Fee received from
Guarantee fee paid

Service Fee paid to

CSR Expenses Paid to
ESOP cost reimbursement

Director Sitting fees

Remuneration paid to

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Balances with related parties:
Interest accrued on loans taken from

Loans given to

Related Party Disclosures

Interest accrued on loan given to

Non convertible debentures (at face value) held by

Subordinated debenture (Face Value) held by
Perpetual debenture (Face Value) held by

Non convertible debentures (Face Value) held in

Interest accrued on Perpetual debentures held by
Interest acerued on Subordinated debentures held by

Interest accrued on Non convertible debentures held by

Interest accrued on Non convertible debentures held in

Trade Payables

ESOP cost payable to

ESOP cost receivable to

Trade Receivables

Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

ECL Finance Limited

EdelGive Foundation
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Mr. Vinod Juneja
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar

Mr. Jignesh Gaglani
Mr, Mehernosh Tata
Reema Shah

Hitesh Bhadada
Manoj Agarwal
Inara Wadhwaniya

Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited(formerly Ecap Equities)
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited(formerly Ecap Equities)

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
ECL Finance Limited
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited
Edel Finance Company Limited

ECL Finance Limited
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edel Finance Company Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
ECL Finance Limited
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

ECL Finance Limited
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edel Finance Company Limited

Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

0.60

22.67

0.26
4.95

0.20

0.49
0.46

0.75
6.47
12.85

0.38

2,500.00

1.87
9.30
4.88

10.31
4.93
18.13
140.00

71.00

0.00
1.80

1.85

22723

0.03
0.01
0.03

0.00
0.13

2.16
82.46
0.01
185
0.67

0.14

0.11

0.00

0.46

4.50

0.60
0.44

0.79
17.70

0.13
0.01

0.17

300.00

0.00
033
237

10.31
4.93
17.73

140.00
71.00
21.62

1.80
140.00
1.84
189.20
0.03
0.34
0.08
0.97
0.13

10.85

0.99
0.11

2.40
0.08

0.33

022
0.09
0.25
23.14



45. Related Party Disclosures

. As at Asal
N £ T 1 arty N /
Nature of Transaction Related Party Name Alareh 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Investment in Security Receipts issued by Edelweiss Asset Reconstruclion Company Limited
EARC Trust SC 373 - 42,05
EARC Trust 5C 383 - 114.45
EARC Trust SC 416 - 91.79
EARC Trus1 SC 374 - 3047
EARC Trust SC 378 - 10,74
EARC Trust SC 417 - 206.99
EARC Trust 5C 251 1,136.46 -
EARC Trust SC 394 203.53 -
Investinent in Securities Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund 231.99 277,36
Edehveiss Value & Growth Fund 304,52 35760
Risk & Rewards sharing arrangement Edelweiss Finaneial Senviees Limited - 702,32
Notes:

[

2

As part of fund based aciivities, intergroup company loans and advances are voluminous in nature and carried on at ann’s length and in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to Ind AS 24 -
Related Party Disclosures, maxinmuin amount of loans given and repaid alongwith the transaction volume are disclosed above, Interest income and expenses on such loans and advances are disclosed
on the basis of full amounts of such loans and advances given and repaid.

Information relating to remuneration paid 1o key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashiment, bonus and deferred bonus which are provided for group
af employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis. The variable compensation included herein is on cash basis,

The above list contain name of only those related pasties with whom the Company has undertaken transactions for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
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46,
46.1.

46.2.

46.3.

46.4.

46.5.

47.

Leases

Set out below are the carvying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the

movements

Balance as at April |
Addition

Lease pre-closure
Amortisation for the year
Balance as at March 31

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease linbilities and the movements

Balance as at April 1
Additions/ reversal (ne1)
Interest on lease liabilities
Lease pre-closure

Repayment of lease obligation
Balance as at March 31

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
Inlerest expense on [ease liabilities
Reversal of lease pre-closure

Rent on: Short Term Leases

Total

Total cash outflow for leases:
Cash outflow of long term leases
Cash outflow of short term leases
Total

For the year ended

For ihe year ended

Details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities, on an undiscounted basis  As at March 31, 2024

Less than 1 year
1-3 years

3-5 years

Total

Cost sharing

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
23.92 13.05
- 19.53
(13.82) (0.46)
(3.40) (8.20)
6.70 23.92
25.62 16.12
n 18.69
1.04 1.93
{15.06) (1.50)
{441} (9.62)
7.19 25.62
340 8.20
1.04 1.93
(1.24) (1.04)
1.79 0.77
5.00 9.86
4.41 9.62
1.72 0.23
6.13 9.85
As at March 31, 2023
4,56 231
3.58 14.61
- 3.70
8.14 25.62

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the ultimate holding Company along with feflow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like
commen senior management compensation cost, Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common
benefit of itself and its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the
Company on the basis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other Companies, actual identifications etc. On the same
lines, employees” costs expended (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company.
Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 37 include reimbursements (received)/paid and are
nret of reimbursements paid/(received). Based on the management's best estimate, Rs. 33.66 million was paid (net of reimbursements

received) during the year (Previous year Rs. 19.67 million).
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48,
(a)

(b)

(¢

(d)

Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile

The Company's overall objective is to manage its business, and the associated risks, in a manner that balances serving the interests of its
customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Company follows following for effective risk management:

1) Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company,
2} Ownership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate; and
3) Firmwide structures for risk governance

The Company ensure improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and devefopment and other measures.

Risk Management Structure

The Company has a risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks associated
with the various business activities. The risk functien is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The Company has also established a
Risk Committee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activities.

Company's risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are able to withstand market volatility and scenarios of sharply
declining prices. The Company centralises the risk monitoring systems to monitor it's client's credit exposure which is in addition to the
monitoring undertaken by the respective businesses.

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishnent and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s
risk management policies. The Committee holds regular meetings and report to board on its activities.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors comphiance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit commnittee is assisted in s
oversight role by intemal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedwres, the
results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal & credit
control processes, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and approving
loans at transaction level as well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and verifications. Company's
key business processes are regularly monitored by the business and/or operation heads. Company's loan approval and administration
procedures, collection and enforcement procedures are designed to minimise delinquencies and maximise recoveries.

At all levels of operations, specificaily tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that all business divisions have
access to extensive, necessary and upto date information.

It is the Company’s policy that a regular briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant stakeholder on the utilisation of
market limits, proprietary investiments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments.

It is the Company’s policy to ensure that risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culwre. Employees are expected to take
ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to, that they decide to take on. The Company’s continucus training and
development emphasises that employees are made aware of the Company’s risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and
responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within it's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are
important elements of employees’ annual ratings and remuneration reviews.

Types of Risks

The Company's risks are generally categorized in the following risk types:

Risk Exposure Arising from Measurement Management of risk

Cash equivalents, rade receivables,

. . . . - . Credit limits and lar
Credit Risk | financial assets measured at amortised]  Aging Analysis, Credit Ratings 1L Limits and regh

monitoring.
cost.
N . s Rolling cash flow Availability of surplus cash, committed
iqui th . N
Liquidity Risk Bomowings and other liabilities forecasts credit lines and borrowing facilities

Regular monitoring to keep the exposure at
Cash flow forccasting an acceptable fevel, with option of taking
Sensitivity analysis Inderest Rate Swaps/Futures if deemed

NECessary.

Investments in Govermnent Sceuriteis,
Market Risk Treasury Bills, Equity Shares, Futures
& Options
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49.1. Credit Risk

(a)

(b)

(c}

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or coumterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's loans and trade receivables.The Company has a policy of dealing
with creditworthy counterparlies and obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial Joss
fromn defaults, In case the loans are to be restructured, similar credit assessment process is followed by the Company.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of ils customer base, including the default risk of the industry and counlry
in which customers operate.

The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limils on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual
counterparties/Groups (Single Borrowing Limit/Group Borrowing Limit) and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market
intelligence. Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The ¢redit quality review process aims to allow the Company to
assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions.

Impairment Assesment:
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss, The expected credit loss allowance is computed

based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of defauit and loss given default. The Company has devised an
internal model to evaluate the probability of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the
loans are classified into various stages as follows:

Internal rating srade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High grade 0 dpd and 1 to 30 dpd* Stage |
Standard grade 31 to 90 dpd* Stage 11
Credit Impaired
Individually impaired NPA* Stage IT

*Excluding non perforing asset (NPA}
**R epresent loan assets classified as NPA as per the extant RBI guidelines

Expected Credit Loss

Credit [oss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive {i.e, all cash shortfalls), discounied at the criginal EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
compuiation is not driven by any single methodology, however methodology and approach used must reflect the following:

- An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

- Reascnable and supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions;

- Time value of money

While the time value of money clement is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR), the objective of developing a macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs})
is to address the first two requirements. This has been achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to
make it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

Company considers a financiat instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations, in all cases when the
borrower becomes 90 days past due or classified as non performing asset (NPA) as per RBI guidelines. Classification of assets form
stage [ to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are more than 30 days past due have been identified as
accounts where significant increase in credit risk has been observed. These accounts have been classified as Stage 2 assets. When such
events cccur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore
assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.




(d}

(e}

o

Probability of Default

Probability of default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. PD estimation process is done based
on historical internal dala available with the Company. While arriving at the PD, the Company also ensures that the factors that affects
the macro economic trends are considered to a reasonable extent, wherever necessary. Company calculates the 12 month PD by taking
into account the past historical trends of the Loans/portfolio and its credit performance. In case of assets where there is a significant
increase in credit risk / credit impaired assets, lifetime PD has been applied.

Loss Given Default (L.GD)

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating
effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money. The Loss Given Default (LGD) has been
computed with workout methodology. Along with actuat recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to estimate
future recoveries in LGD computation. Workout LGD computation involves the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries (as a part
of the workout process) on a particular facility, as a percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The
assessment of workout LGD was then performed. Principal outstanding each loan was assessed, which went inte the denominator of
the LGD caleulation. LGD computation has been done for each segment and sub-segment separately.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe 1o the portfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the
drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These
exposures are of the nature where the Company provides future commitments, in addition to the current credit. Therefore, the exposure
will contain both on and off balance sheet values. The value of exposure is given by the following formula:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor ¥ Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount
Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) = Expected future drawdown as a proportion of undrawn amount

Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Company has comumitted and the drawn credit line While the
drawn exposure and limits for the customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD

(g} Forward looking adjustments

(h)

@

“A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible oulcomes and
using reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.”

To fulfil the above requirement Company has incorporated forward tooking information into its measurement of ECL. The objective of
developing a macroeconomic model using exogenous macreeconomic variables (MEVs) is 10 address the requirements of unbiased,
probability weighted outcomes while taking into account current conditions as well as future economic conditions. This will be
achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Exogenous macroeconomic parameters wese used as independent (X) variables to predict the dependent {Y) variable. The Company
formulates base case view of the future direction of relevant economic variable as well as a representative range of other possible
forecast scenario. This involves developing iwo or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of
each outcome.

Data sourcing

The Company is expected to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, Keeping in
mind the above requirement macroeconomic information was aggregated from various research database like RBI database, Economic
Intelligence Unit (E1U), Bloomberg, World Bank, Citi research eic. Beyond 2022 macro-econemic variables are forecasted by mean
reverting the values to their long term average. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by govermnental
bodies and monetary authorities in the country, supranational organisations such as the OECD and the IMF, and selected private sector
and academic forecasters.

Probability weighted scenario creations:

To incorporate macroeconomic impact into probability-weighted, each scenarfo has an assoctated prebability. In order to ensure
consistency across macroeconomic models, these probabilities were caleulated at an overall level for both Retail and Non-Retail
portfolios, considering the impact of a scenario across different portfolios may differ based on endogenous factors, the probability of a
scenario unfolding is purely exogenous, and hence should not vary.

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments and
using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationship between marco-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses,

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and default and loss rates on varlous portfolios of financial assess have been
developed based on analysing historical data over the past years.
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49,1, Credit Risk
49.1.1. Analysis of risk concentration
The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the balance sheet.
Additional disclosures for credit quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk per categorics based

on the Company’s internal credit assessment system and year-end stage classification are further
disclosed in Note 11.

Industry analysis

As at March 31, 2024 Fmal.tctal Retail Construction  Wholesale Total
services

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent 460.17 - - - 460.17

and other bank balances

Trade receivables 0.69 - - - 0.69

Loans - 3,174.58 - 3,998.36 7,172.94

[nvestments 675.42 1,543.92 - - 2,219.34

Other financial assets 18.23 - - - 18.23
1,154.51 4,718.50 - 3,998.36 9,871.37

Loan Commitments - 100.06 - - 100.06

Total 1,154.51 481855 - 3,098.36  9,971.43
As at March 31, 2023 Fmar_jmal Retail Construction  Wholesale Total
services

Financial asscts

Cash and cash equivalent 386.50 - - - 386.50

and other bun's balances

Trade receivables 35.21 - - - 35.21

Loans - 3,647.33 - 1,796.34 5,443.67

Investments 2,509.92 783.61 - - 3,293.53

Other financial assets 826,19 - - - §26.19
3,757.81 4.,430.94 - 1,796.34 9,985.10

Loan Commitinents - 116.04 - - 116.04

Total 3,757.81 4,546.98 - 1,796.34 10,101.14
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49.1. Credit Risk

49.1.2. Collateral held and other eredit enhancements

(a) The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with

details of principal type of collateral:

Maximum exposure to credit risk {carrying
amount before ECL)

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Financial assets
Loans (at amortised cost)
(i) Retail loans 2,467.52 3,160.88
(i1} Wholesale loans 1,034.55 -
Total (A) 3,502.07 3,160.88
Loan commitments £00.06 110.78
Total (B) 106.06 110.78
Total (A +B) 3,602.12 3.271.66

(b) TFinancial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order o mitigate potential losses are given below:

As at March 31, 2024

Principal type of collateral

Property
Property

Property

Maximuin exposure o Associated ECL Carrying amount  Fair value of
credit risk (carrying collateral
amount before ECL)

Financial assets

Loans (at amortiscd cost)

(i) Retail loans 162,92 55.07 107.86 250,82
(ii) Wholesale loans - - - .
Total (A) 162.92 55.07 107.86 250.82
Loan commitments - - - -
Total {(B) - - - -
Total (A +B) 162.92 55.07 107.86 250.82
As at March 31, 2023

Financial assets

Loans (at amortised cost)

(£) Retail loans 146.23 27.02 119.21 180.36
(ii) Wholesale loans - - - -
Total (A) . 146.23 27.02 119.21 180.36
Loan commiunents - - . -
Total (B} - - - -
Total (A + B) 146.23 27.02 119.21 180.36
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491, Credit Risk
49.1.3. Overview of modified and forborne loans

The table below includes assets that were modified and, therefore, treated as forbome during the year, with
the related modification gain / {Joss) sullered by the Company.

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Amortised costs of financial assets modified during the - -
Net modification gain / (loss) - -

49.1.4. Transfer of financial assets

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part
or all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Securitisations
Carrying amount of transferred assets 750.29 1,i32.73
theld as Collateral}
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 806.9¢ 813.50
Fair value of assets 887.09 1,232.64
Fair value of associated Habiliv:., 806.90 813.50

Net position at FV 80.19 419.14
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49,2, Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company wilt encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are setled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility thai the Company might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of
mismatches in the timing of the cash fiows under both normal and stress circumstances.

The company has financing arrangement from banks/ financial institutions in form of committed credit lines.

49.2.1. Analysis of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

On 1tol4 15daysto I monthto2 2monthsto3 3Imonthsto 6 monthsto lyearto3 3yearstoS OverS

As at March 31, 2024 demand days 1 month nionths months 6 months 1 yvear years years years Total
A. Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalent and other
bank balances 357.94 - - - - - £02.23 - - - 460.17
Trade receivables . - - 0.69 - - . - . - 0.69
Loans - 34109 174141 76.42 516.75 247.40 3.055.68 1.32%.54 1,691.71 1.569.81 9,100.67
Tnvestaments - - - 0.00 5.09 18.11 52.53 1,286.96 183.21 673.43 2,219.34
Qther financial assets - - 3.07 - - 0.06 - 19,16 . - 18.23
Total undiscounted iinancial
assets 357.94 34.19 187.18 77.12 521.85 265.57 321045 2,626.59 1,874.97 2,643.24 11,799.10
B. Financial Liabilities:
Trade payables - - - 177.69 - - - - - - 177.69
Debt securities - 3.09 - - 13.94 26.08 69.16 607.91 892.38 - 1,612.55
Borrowings (other than debt
securities) - 19.21 - 19.00 18.88 55.64 136.31 - - - 269.04
Suberdinated financial liabilities - - - - - - 175.86 1.037.34 1,240,00 450,00  2,899.20
Other financial liabilities - 4.30 385.52 4,89 4,68 67.71 18.78 25.40 186.43 - 697.72
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities - 26,60 385.52 201.58 37.50 149.43 416.11 1,670.65  2,318.81 450,00  5,656.20
Net financial assets /

357.94 7.5%  (198.33) (124.47) 484,35 116.14 2,794.54 955.94 (443.84) 2,193.24  6,142.90

(liabilities)

Note - The comparny has finaneing arrangement from banks/ financial institulions in form of committed credit lines. Undrawn committed credit lines as at March 31, 2024 is Nill.
49.2.2. The table below shows the expected maturity of the Company’s loan commitments

Undrawn loan commitments - - - - 100.06 - - - - - 100.06

Total - - - - 100.06 - - - - - 100.96




On ltol4 t5daystol 1 monthte2 Zmonthste3 3Imontksto6 6monthsto 1yearto3d 3 yearsto$

As at March 31, 2023 Over 5 years Total

demand days month months months months | year years years
A. Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalent and other
bank balances 267.13 . - 9538 B 2,00 209 - - - 336.50
Securities held for trading - - - - - 24,06 15407 - - - 178.13
Trade receivables - - . 35.21 - - - . - - 3521
Loans - 49,32 83.77 157.95 L.315.60 684.18 641.46 1,363.54 856.97  2,718.40 8.071.20
[nvestments - - - - . - - - 783.61 2.331.79 311539
Other financial assets - - 81175 - - - - 14.44 - - 826.19
Total undiscounted financial asscts 267,13 49.32 895.52 28544 1.515.60 710,24 B17.61  1.377.98 164058  5050.19 1261262
B. Financial Liabilities:
Trade payables - - - 57.27 - - - - - - 57.27
Debt securities - 3.09 B 289 309 9.10 56.96 41063 1.032.83 - 1.518.68
Borrowings (other than debt
securilies) - 14.87 14.84 14.66 43.46 83.89 435,93 131.04 - - 738.69
Subordinated financiat liabilitics - - - - - 22.20 154.95 51040 2,164.30 - 2.851.84
Othier financial liabilities - - 476.25 13.78 11,45 30.68 46.26 140.68 79.46 223.36 102192
Total undiscounted tinancial
liabilities - 17.96 491,09 48.70 58.00 145.87 694.09 1,192,795 3.276.59 23336 6,188.41
Net financial assets / (liabilities) 36713 31.37 404.43 199.74 145761 364.37 123.52 18523 {1.636.01) 4.826.83 6.424.21

Note - The company has financing arrangement from banks/ financial institutions in form of committed credit lines, Undrawn committed credit lines as at March 31, 2023 is Nil.
The table below shows the expexted maturity of the Company’s loan commitments

Undrawn loan commitmenis - - B - 116.04 - - - - - 116.04

Total - - - - 1§6.04 - - - - - 116.04
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49,2, Liquidity Risk

49,2.3. Financial assets available to support future funding

Following table scts out availability of company's financial assets to support funding

Notes:-

Encumbered Unencumbered .
As at March 31, 2024 Pledgeas  Contractually/ Iegally  Availableas  Others Tot:llnzz:::mg
collateral restricted assets collateral

Cash and cash equivalent 102.23 - 357.94 - 460,17

mncluding bank balance

Securities held for trading .. - - - -

Trade receivables - - 0.69 - 0.69

Loans 1,100.51 697.52 5,364.33 10.59 1,172.94

Investments - 1,543.92 675.42 - 2,219.34

Property, Plant and Equipment 0.37 - -

(Land) - 0.37

Other financial assets - 18.23 - - 18.23

Total assets 1,203.12 2,259.67 6.398.38 10.59 9,871.74

Encumbered Unencumbered Total carrying
As al March 31, 2023 Pledge as Contractually/ legally  Available as Others amount
collateral restricted assets collateral

Cash and cash equivalent

including bank balance 37.01 - 349.49 - 386.50

Securities held for trading - - 178.13 - 178.13

Trade receivables - - 3521 - 3521

Loans £,775.26 838.12 2,751.29 79.00 5,443.67
" Investiments - 783.61 2,331.79 B 3,115.40

Property, Plant and Equipment

(Land) 0.37 - - - 0.37

Other financial assets - 0.00 826.19 - 826.19

Total assets 1,812.64 1,621.73 6,472.10 79.00 998547

Represents assets which are not pledged and Group believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other reason

Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the group would not consider readily available to secure
funding in the nonmal course of business




Edclweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)}
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

49.3.

49.3.1

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk associated with the effect of changes in market factors such as inferest rates, equity prices, credit spreads or
implied volatilities, on the value of assets and liabilities held resulting in loss of future earnings. The objective of the Company's market
risk management is 1o manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. The Company separates its exposure fo
market risks between trading and non-trading portfolios.

Exposure to market risk — Non trading portfolios

Interest rate risk - The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash
flows or fair values of financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. [nterest rate risk is managed principally through
monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits, ALCQ reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of floating
and fixed rate assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.

Total market risk exposure

The fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market varfables such as interest rates. The
Company classifies its exposures to market risk into non-trading portfolios,

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
X Primary risk
Particulars Carrying  Traded risk Non-traded Carrying  Treded risk  Non-traded  gensitivity
amount risk amount risk
Financial Asscts
Cash and cash equivalent and other 460.17 - 460.17 386.50 - 386.50  Interest rale
bank balances
Loans 7.172.94 - 7,172.94 5.443.67 - 5.443.67  Interest rate
Investments 221934 - 221934 3.293.53 178.13 3,115.40  Interest rate
Trade receivables 0.69 - 0.69 35.21 - 3521
Other financial asseis 18.23 - 18.23 826.19 - 826.19
Total 9,871.37 - 9,871.37 9.985.10 178.13 9.806.97
Financial Liability
Debt securities 1,166.41 - 1,166.41 889.88 - 889.88  Interest rate
Borrowings (other than Debt 254,47 - 25447 705.60 - 705.60  Tnterest rate
Securities)}
Subordinated Liabilities 2,233.62 - 2,233.62 2,190.60 - 2,190.60  Interest rate
Trade payables 177.70 - 177.70 57.27 - 57.27
Other liabilities 697.72 - 697.72 1.021.92 - 1,021.92

Total 4,529.93 - 4,529.93 4,865.27 - 4,865.27
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49.3. Market Risk
49.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows of
financial instruments. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed
changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate non-trading financial
assets and financial liabilities held as at year end.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all
other variables being constant) of the Company’s statement of prolit and loss and equity.

Increase/ Increascin  Decreascin  Increasein  (Pecrease) in

For the year ended (Decrease) in  profit after  profit after Equity LEquity
basis points tax tax

INR Loans

March 31, 2024 25/(25) 4.16 {4.16) 4.16 4.16)

March 31,2023 25/(25) 533 (5.33) 5.33 (5.33)

INR Borrowings

March 31, 2024 25/(25) (0.49) 0.4 {0.49) 0.49
March 31, 2023 25/(25) (1.18) L18 (1.18) .18
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50.1,

Al

Fair Value measurement:
Yaluation principles

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sefl an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under curreat market conditions (i.e.. an exit price). regardless of whether that price is directly
observabe or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, {inancial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation techniques:

Level 1 — valuation technique using quoted market price; financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that
company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs:Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly
or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of he instrument’s life.

Levet 3 - valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the
measurement as whole.

Refer note 3.11 for more details on fair value hierarchy
Valuation governance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate
safeguards are in place 1o ensure its quality and adequacy. Ali new produet initiatives (including their valuation methodotogies) are subject to
approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally guoted prices or observable pricing inputs 1o models, independent price determination or
vatidation is used. For inactive markets, Conpany sources allernative market information., with greater weight given to information that is considered
to be more refevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is aiso responsible for
estabiishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2024 Level ¥ Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Investrment

Corporate Bonds 1.99 - - 1.99
Fotal financial instrements measured at fajr value- A 1.99 - - 1.99
Investment

Security Receipis (SR) - - 1.543.92 1,543.92
Total financial instruments measured at fair value- B - - 1,543.92 1,543.92
Investment

Units of AIF - - 673.43 673.43
Total financial instruments measured at fair value - C - - 67343 673.43
Total (A+B+C) 1.99 - 2,217.35 2,219.33
As at March 31, 2023 Eevel | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assels measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Envestment
Corporate Bends 178.13 - - 178.13
Total financial instruments measured at fair value - A 178.13 - - 178,13
Investment
Security receipis - - 783.61 783.61
Total financial instruments measured at fair value - B - - 783.61 783.61
Investment
Units of AIF - - 2,331.80 2,331.80
Total financial insiruments measured at fair value - C - - 2,331.80 2,331.80

Total (A+B+C) 178.13 - 3.115.40 3.293.53




Valoatdon Techniques:

Debt Securities

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed rate securities. however nifty linked debentures have embedded derivative characteristies. Fair
value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative guotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at the reparting date. Company has
used guoted price of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity traded Company has
used CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer model for measuring fair value.

Security Reccipts

The market for these securities is not active. Investments in SRs issued by ARCs shall be valued periodically by reckoning the Net Asset Value

(NAV) declared by the ARC and as per RBI guidelines. Securities receipts with significant unobservable valuation inputs are classified as Level 3.

There have been no transfers between levels during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Financial year ended March 2024 Security Receipts  Units of AIF Total
Investments - at April 1, 2023 783.61 2,331.80 311540
Purchase 1.614.01 40.75 1.654.76
Sale/Redemption proceeds {855.34) (1.813.00) (2,669.23)
Profi/(loss) for the year recognised in profit or loss (.10 114.78 106.67
FV losses under R&R reimbursed by ultimate holding co 1575 - 1575
Investments - at March 31, 2024 1,543.92 673.43 2,217.35
Unrealised gain/(Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year 93.93 (21.28) 72.65
Financial year ended March 2023 Security receipts Units of AIF Total
Investments - at April 1,2022 1.240.22 300.76 1.540.98
Purchase 622.17 2,367.58 2.989.75
Sale/Redemption proceeds {1,074.73) (288.24) (1,362.97)
Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss (4.05) (48.30) (52.35)
Investments - at March 31, 2023 783.61 2.331.80 3.115.40
Unrealised gain/(Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year {4.05) (48.30) (52.35)
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5.1, Falr Yalue measurgment:

G. [Impacton fair value of level 3 financial instrument of changes o key uncbservable inputs
The below table summarises the valuation techniques together with the sigrificant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of the Company's Level 3 Instcuments i.e, Securities receipis. The range of values
indicates the highest and lowest level input used in the valuation technique and. as such, only reflects the characteristics of the instruments as opposed to the level of uncerlainty to their valuation. Relationships between
inobservable inpuis have not been incorporated in this summary.

Fairv -
Type of Financial air value of . . Significant unobservable Range of cstimates Inerease in the Change in fair Decrease in the Change in fair
Instramenis asset as on 31 Valuatlon technigues input for unobservable unebservable input value unobservable input value
March 2024 P input ery inpul p
4 increase in 5% Decrease in
Security Receipts (SR) 1.543.92 Net Asset Value Method Book Value 1.450.02  Expected future Cash 7250  Expecred future {72.50)
flow Cash flow
Fairvalue of underiying %% increase in Fair 5% Increase in Fair
Units of AIF 6573.43 Net Asset Value Methed investments ying 67543 valug of Underlying 1367 value of Underlying (33.67)
Investment Investment

Fair value of

Type of Finaneial assct as on 31

Valuation techniques

Range of estimatss

Significant unobservable for unobservable

Increase in the Change in fair Decrease in the

Change in fair

Instruments March 2023 input nput unobservable iaput value unobservable input value
- 5% intercase in 5% Decrease in

Discounted Cash flow. The present

value of expected future ccanomic Expeeted future cash flows 786.09 Expcctctflﬁ.ll-ure Cash 3369 Expceclgtz.lful'urc {33.69}
Security Recgipis 783.61 benefits to be derived from the o ash flow

" ownership of the undeslying investments S . o N 0.5% Decrease in
of1he Trust. Risk-adjusted discount 12.00% 0.5. % increase in Risk- (3.48)  Risk-adjusted 348
Tae adjusted discount rate .
giscouni rale
Fair value of underlying 9% Increase in Fair 5% Increase in Fair

Utits of AIF 2,331.80 Net Asset approach dlue ol underlying 333180 value of Underlying 11659 value of Underlying (116.59)

investments

Investment Invesiment
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50.2, Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analysing themn by the level in the fair value hiesarchy
into which each fair value measurement is categorised.

Tatal Carrying Tatal fair v

As on March 31, 2024 alue Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Amount

Financial assefs

Eoans 717294 6,919.42 - - 6,919.42

Total 7,172.94 601942 - - 65,919.42

Financial liabilities

Diebt securities 1.166.41 1,212.39 - 1.212.3% -

Subordinated liabilities 2,233.62 2,249 86 - 2,249.86 -

Totat 3,400.03 3.462.25 - 3.462.25 -

As on March 31. 2023

Financial assets:

Loans 5.443.67 4,991.20 - - 4,991.20

Total 5.443.67 4.991.20 - - 4.991.20

Financial liabilities

Debt securities 889.88 906.13 - 9G6.13 -

Subordinated liabilities . 2,190.60 221411 - 2,214.11 -

Total 3,080.48 3,120.23 - 3.120.23 -

50.3 Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value
Below are the methodologies and assumptions used 1o determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and
measured at fair value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below
methodologies and assumptions relate only {0 the fustruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the tech.iques and
assumptions explained in notes.

Short term financial assets and liabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a shori-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts are a rcasonable
approxémation of their fair value. Such instruments include: Trade receivables, trade payables and contract liability without a specific
maturity, Such amounts have been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have been made to the balances in the balance sheet.
Cash and cash equivalent and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents have been classified as Level 1.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contraciual cash
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties® credit risk. In case of floating interest rate
linked loans, since such loans are subject to repricing perfodically (less than twelve months), with the interest rate reflecting current market
price. Hence carrying value of loans is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.

1ssued debt
The fair value of issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash flow model incorporating the Company's owa credit risk.

Financial liabilitics at amortised cost

The fair values of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields. In case of floating interest rate linked borrowings, since such borrowings are
subject to repricing periodically (less than twelve months), with the interest rate reflecting current market price. Hence carrying value of such
borrowings is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.
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51. Trade receivables

Provision matrix for Trade receivables

Particulars

ECL rate

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

Trade receivables days past ) . . morethan

due 1-90days 91-180 days 181-365 days 365 days Total
0.60% 8.02% 0.00% 100.60%

Estimated total gross carrying

amount at default 0.21 0.52 - 0.62 135

ECL - Simplified approach (0.00) (0.04) - 0.62) (0.66)

Net carrying amount 0.21 0.48 - 0.00 .69

Estimated total gross carrying

amount at default 35.69 0.00 0.06 0.65 3641

ECL - Simplified approach {0.50) (0.00) {0.04) (0.65) (1.19)

Net carrying amount 35.19 0.00 0.02 (0.00) 3521
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52.  Details of the loan taken from Banks and other parties

Nature of Security and ferms of repayment for sccured borrowings

All Secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e.loans & advances.

(2) Petails of term loan taken from Banks (excluding of Interest acerued on Term loans and EIR impact)

As at March 31 2024

Month of Maturity/Repayment

Rate of Increst

<= 10% >10% Grand Total
March-25 5.0 5.00
February-25 5.00 5.00
January-25 17.50 17.50
December-24 17.50 17.50
November-24 17.568 17.50
October-24 17.5¢ 17.50
September-24 17.50 17.50
August-24 17.50 17.50
July-24 17.50 17.50
June-24 17.50 17.50
May-24 17.50 17.50
Aprit-24 17.50 17.50
Total 185.00 185.00
As at March 31 2023
. Rate of [nterest
® Month of Maturity/Repayment —10% 0% Grnd o

March-24 12.50 12.56
February-24 12.50 12.50
January-24 12.50 12.50
December-23 12.50 12.50
November-23 12.50 12.50
Qctober-23 12.50 12.50
September-23 12.50 12.50
August-23 12.50 12.50
July-23 [2.50 12.50
June-23 12.50 12.50
May-23 12.50 12.50
April-23 12.50 12.50
Total 150.00 150.00
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53 Repayment terms of Secured/Un-Secured Non-convertible Debentures are as follow:

54.

55.

The debentures are secured by way of pari passu charge on an immaovable property and standard loan assets 1o the extent of 100% of the

outstanding amount of the debentures, unless otherwise stated.

As at March 31 2024

Description of Secured Redeemable Non

R R tion Dat No. of NCD
Convertible Debentures (NCD) ate Issue Date edemption Date No. ol s

ERFL/Public NCD/Scries VI 9.25%  22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4,83,173
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V 8.88%  22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4,09,205

Description of Un-Secured Redeemable
Non Convertible Debentures (NCD)
ERFL/Privatec NCD INE528508076 10.40%  18-Mar-2024 18-Mar-2027 3,000

As al March 31 2023
Diescription of Secured Redeemable MNon

Convertible Debentures (NCD) Rate [ssue Date Redemption Date No. of NCDs
ERFL/Public NCD/Series VI 9.25%  22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4.83.173
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V 8.88%  22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4.09.205

*Excluding of Interest accried and EIR impact
Repayment terms of Unsccured non-convertible redeemable subordinate debentures are as follow:

As at March 31 2024

ISIN number Rate Issuc Date Redernption Date No. of NCDs

INE528508043 9.25%  06-Oct-2017 06-Oct-2027 1,000
INE528508035 9.25%  3-Jul-2017 31-Jul-2027 240
INES28508027 9.95%  10-Oct-2016 09-Oct-2026 120
INE528508019 11.50% 25-May-2015 26-May-2025 140

As at March 31 2023

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. of NCDs

INE328508043 9.25%  06-Oct-20i7 06-Oct-2027 1,000
INE528508035 9.25%  31-ul-2017 31-Jul-2627 240
INE528508027 9.95%  10-0c1-20i6 09-Oct-2026 120
INE528508019 11.50%  25-May-2015 26-May-2023 140

*Excluding of hiterest accrued and EIR impact
Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable perpetual debentures are as follow.

As at March 31 2024

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. of NCDs
INES28S08050 9.75%  26-Dee-2017 Perpetual 200
INE528S08068 10.00%  97-Feb-2018 Perpetual 250

As at March 31 2023

ISIN nuinber Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. of NCDs
INE528508050 9.75%  26-Dec-2017 Pempetual 200
TNE528508068 10.00%  07-Feb.2018 Perpetual 250

*Excluding of Interest accrued and EIR inpact

Amount*

483.17
409.21
392.38

300,00

Amount®

483.17
409.21
892,38

Amount®
1,000.00
240.00
120,00
140.00
1,500.00

Amount*
1.000.00
240,00
120.00
140.00
1,500.00

Amount*
240,00
250,00
450.00

Amoung*
200.00
250.00
450.00
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56. Capital Management

()

(b

—

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complics with externally
imposed capital requirements from its regulators and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order te support its
business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Pillars of its policy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of scurces of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk.

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liabilities issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial
strength of their balance sheets are preserved.

¢) Manage financial market risks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on eamings.
d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise shareholder retums while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market
conditions and interest rates environinent

Regulatory Capital

The below regulatory capital is computed in accordance with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial

Company ~Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.No.45/03.10.119/2023-24) dated
Oclober 19, 2023,

As at Asat

Particulars Mavrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Capital Funds

Common Equity Tier] (CET1) capital 3,559.63 5,376.21

Other Tier 2 capital instruments (CET2) 718.19 1,292.03
Toetai eapital 4,277.82 6,668.23
Risk weighted assets 7,447.09 9,228.94

Tier 1 Capital ratio 47.80% 58.25%

Tier 2 Capital ratio 9.64% 14.00%

Total Capital ratio 57.44% 72.25%
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57. Other Disclosures

@

Trade Payables includes 6.0 million amount payable to “Suppliers’™ registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (Previous
Year Nil) Interest paid by the company during the year to “Suppliers™ registered uader this Act is 0,02 méllion} (Previcus year: Nil}. The aforementioned is based on

Details of dues to microe enterprise and small enterprise

the responses received by the company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard 1o applicability under the said Act.

(ii} Disclosure under regulation 53(f) of SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015

Particulars

Loans to advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries
Loans to advances in the nature of loans to associates
Loans to advances in the nature of loans to finns/companies in which direclors are interested

Investment by the lonee in the share of parents company and subsidiary company, when the
company has made a foans & advances in the nature of loans

As at
March 31, 2024

As at]
March 31, 2023

{iii) Relationship with Struck off Companies

Below are the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

Name of the struck off company Nature of transactions jRelationship with Balance oufstanding |Balance outstanding as
with struck-off the Struck off company, |as on March 31, 2024 |on March 31, 2023
Company if any, to be disclosed

MEDIFIT HEALTH & FITNESS PRIVATE LIMITED [Receivables None 0.00 0.44

M.3.CLOTHING Recelvables Nene 0.24 -

S M ENTERPRISES Receivables Nene 0.05 -

GODAVARI TRADERS Receivables None 0.11 -

AYUH MEDITECH SOLUTIONS PVT LTD Receivables Nene 0.07 -

SRl SA] SIMHADRI TYRES Receivables Nene 0.10 -

Total 0.57 0.44
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57.  Other Disclosures

{iv Disclosure Large Corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular SEBVHO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018,

Initial Disclosure 10 be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate

Sr. No. Particulars
Wame of the company
CIN

B

Agency

5 Wame of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid, in case of shortfall in the
required borrowing uader the framework

Qutstaading borrowing of company as en March 31, 2024
Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with name of the Credit Rating

Details

EDELWEISS RETAH. FINANCE LIMITED
U67120MH1997PLC285490

3654.50

As per Table | below

BSE LIMITED

Table I

Product Credit Rating Name of Rating Agency
Bank Borrowings ICRA A+ ICRA Limited
Commercial Papers CRISIL Al+ CRISEL
Commercial Papers CARE Al CARE Limited
Long Term Sub-Debt CRISIL A+ & A/Stable CRISIL

Long Term Sub-Debt ICRA A+ ICRA Limited
Long Term Sub-Debt CARE AfStable CARE Limited
Long Term NCD CRISIL A+ & AfStable CRISIL

Long Term-NCD ICRA A+ ICRA Limited
Long Term-NCD CARE A/Stable CARE Limited
Long Term-NCD BWR AA- & A+/Negative Brickwork Ratings
Perpetual — Debt CRISIL A+ & AfStable CRISIL

Perpetual — Debt BWR AA- & A+/MNepative Brickwork Ratings
Perpetual — Debt ACUITE AfStable ACUITE Ratings

™ Details of incremental borrowings diring the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

Details

3-year block period

FY 2023-24, FY 2024-25, FY 2025-26

Incremental borrowing done in FY (8} 400
Mandatery berrowing to be done through issuance of debt securities {25% of a} = (b) 100
Actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY (¢) 300
Shertfail in the mandatory borrowing threugh debt securities for FY 22-23 (d)

{If the calculated value is zero or negative, write "nil"} 75
Quantum of {d), which has been met from (c) (¢} 75
Sherifal], if any, in the mandatory borrewing through debt secusities for FY 2023-24{afler

adjusting for any shortfall in borrowing for FY 2022-23 which was carried forward te FY 2023-

24} (N =(b)-{()(e)] 0

(vi)  Details of penalty to be pald, if any, in respect to previous year ¢nded March 31,2023

Particulars Betails
2.year block period FY 2022-23, FY 2023.24

Amount of fine to be paid for the block,if appiicable Fine =0.2% of {(d)-(e) }

Nil
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57. Other Disclosures

{vii) Disclosure of Ratios

Sr. No. Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
1 Debt-equity Ratio T/= =1} 0.67 0.86
2 Debenture redemption reserve (Rupees in Crores) 2.29 2.29
3 Net worth (Rupees ins Crores) 72 548.96 533.00
4 et prafit after tax (Rupees in Crores} 14.42 27.79
5 Earnings per share (not annualised)
5.a Basic (Rupees) 3.36 6.47
5.b Diluted (Rupees} 3.36 6.47
6 Total debts to total assets ©= =9 0.36 0.44
7 Net profit margin (%) ©& e 13.47% 21.59%
3 Sector specific equivalent ratios
(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) (%} 57.44% 72.25%
(b} Tier | CRAR (%) 47.80% 58.25%
{c) Tier I CRAR (%) 9.64% 14.00%
(d) Stage 3 ratio (gross) (%) "D 2.24% 2.81%
(e) Stage 3 ratio {net) (34) =D 147% 2.17%
9 Liquidity coverage ratio™ 7t ? N.A N.A

The company being a retail finance company, disclosure of current ratio, long term debt to working capital, Bad debts to Account receivable ratio, Current
liability ratio, Debtazs tumover, Inventory tumover, Operating margin are not apgplicabie.

1.Debt-equity Ratio = Total Debt (Debt Securities + Borrowings {other than debt securities) + Subordinated Liabilities) / Net worthh

2. Net worth = Share capital + Share application money pending allotment + Reserves & Surplus - Deferred Tax Assets

3. Total delsts to total assets = Total Diebt / Tatal assets

4. Net profit margin (%6) = Net profit after tax / Revenue from Operations

5. Stage 3 ratio (gross) = Gross Stage 3 loans / Gross Loans

6, Stage 3 matio (net) = (Gross stage 3 loans - impairment loss allowance for Stage 3) / Gross Loans

7. As per RBI guidelines on Liguidity Risk Management Framework, atl non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of Rs. 5,000 crore shall maintain the
required level of Liquidity coverage mtio (LCR) starting December 1, 2020 in phased marmer from 30% to 100% by December 1, 2024, As at March 31,
2024, the Company's asset size is less than Rs. 5,000 crores and hence minimum LCR maintenance is not mandatory for the Company.
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37

(Vi)

(ix)

3

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii}

Other Disclosures
Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory peried by the company.

Compliance with number of layers of companics

The provision of this act shall not be applicable as the company is a nea-banking financial company as defined in the Reserve
Bank of India Acl, 1934 (2 of 1934) which is registered with the Reserve Bank of India and considered as systemically important
non-banking financial company by the Reserve Bank of India as per the exceptions prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the
Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(A) During the year, the company has not advanced or loaned or invesied funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities {Intenmediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: )

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{B} During the year, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

{i}) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or en behalf of the
Funding Party(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
Details of Benami Property held

There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the company for helding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

Undisclosed income

The Company wilt not hav any transaction which not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Rounding of amounts

Ail amounts disclosed in the financial siatements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirements.
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

i Foreign current,
it Y

The Company has not undertaken any fereign currency transaction during the year ended March 31, 2024 (Previous ycar: Rs Nil).

{ii) Investments

Sr. No |Particulars As at As af
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Value of Investments
(i} |Gross value of Investments
(a} In India 2,219.34 3,115.40
(b) Outside India - -
(ii) |Provisions for Depreciation
(a} In India - -
{b) Qutside India - -
{iii} |Wet value of Investments
(a} In India 2,219.34 3,11540
(b} Quiside India - -
Movement of provisions keld towards depreciation en investments
(i) |Opening balance - -
(ii} |Add: Provisions made during the year - -
(i) |Less: Write-ofT / Written-back of excess provisions during the year - -
{iv} |Closing balance - -
(iii} Derivatives
{a) Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
. . As at As at
Sr. No |Farticulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{i} |The notional principal of swap agreements Nil Nit
(i) [Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under 1he Nil Nid
agreements
(iif) |Coltateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swaps Nil Nil
{i¥} |Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps® Nil Nil
Nil Wil

(v} [The fair value of the swap book @

should also be disclosed.,

recaive or pay (o termiinate the Swap agreements as on the balonce sheet date.

* Examples of concentration could be exposures ro particular industries or swaps with highly geared companies.

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including information on credit and market risk and the aecounting poficies adopred for recording the swaps

& If the swaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities, or commitments, the fair value wowld be the estimated amount that the applicable NBFC would

(b} Exchange Traded Interest Rate (ER) Derivatives

Sr. No {Particulars Amount
(i) | Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrumentwise} Nil
(¢i) |Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on March 31, 2024 (instrument-wise) Nil
(i} | Notional principal amoust of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective” {instnument-wise) Nil
(ivy | Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective” (instrument-wise) Nil




Edchyeiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

58. Regulatory Disclosures

i)

{v}

(c) Qualitative Disclosures

The Company has a process whereby periodically alf long terin contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has
reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as tequired under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long ter contracts has
been made in the books of account. The Company has not entered into any derivalive contracts during the year. (Previous year Rs. Nil)

(d) Quantitative Disclosures

Sr. No |Particulars Cl.}rre'nt 1ntﬂ"l:st Bate
Derivatives Derivatives
(i} |Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount} Nil Nil
For hedging Nil Nil
(i) |Marked to Market Positions
a) Asscl {+)} Nil Nil
b) Liability (-) Nit Nil
(iii) |Credit Exposure Nil Nil
{iv) |Unhedged Exposures Nit Nil
Asset liability management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
As at March 31,2024
Buckets Deposits Advances Investments®  Borrowings Foreign Currency  Foreign Currency
(Gross) Assets Assets
1 day to 7 days 86.90 - 2693 - -
§ dayto 14 days 597 - 0.17 - -
15 days to 30/31 days (One month) 163.06 - 4463 - -
Over 1 month upto 2 months 48.33 0.0¢ 17.50 - -
Over 2 months upto 3 months 439,535 3.25 17.50 - -
Over 3 months upto 6 months 169,05 976.84 60A8 - -
Over 6 months upto [ year 3,000.55 28.82 200.20 - -
Cwver 1 year upto 3 years 814,37 25183 738.71 - -
Over 3 years upto 5 years 131647 191.53 2,582.38 - v
Over 5 years 1,263.00 767.36 - - -
Total 1,367.31 2,219.34 3,654.51 - -
*Including securities held for trading
Muturity pattern of certain items of assets and liahilities
As at March 31,2023
: Advances . Toreign Currency Foreign Currency
Bucket: *
uckets Deposits (Gross) Investiments Borrowings Assets Asscls
1 day to 7 days 49.62 - 23.63 - -
§ day to 14 days 14.06 - - - -
15 days 1o 30/3) days (One month} 83.77 - 96,40 - -
Cver 1 month upto 2 months 118.86 - 12.50 - -
Over 2 months upto 3 menths 1,477.34 - 12.50 - -
Over 3 months upto 6 months 593.97 24.06 5228 - -
Crver 6 months upto 1 year 541.59 134.07 473.26 - -
Over 1 year upto 3 years 770.68 - 41313 - -
Over 3 years upto 5 years 363.02 783.61 2,702.38 - -
Over 5 years 1,635,14 2.331.80 “ - -
Total 5,648.05 3.293.53 3,786.07 - -
*Including securities held for trading
Capital te risk assets ratio (CRAR)
. . As at As al;
Sr. No | Particulars March31,2024)  March 31,2023
(i} CRAR (%) 57.44% 72.25%
{ii) CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 47.80% 58.25%
(iii) CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%)} 9.64% 14.00%
{iv) Amount of subordinated debt outstanding at end of year: 1,774.74 1,731.84
(Raised during the year: Nil, Previous year Nil)
(Discounted value of subordinated debt considered for the purpose of Tier 1Y capital Rs.
§20.00 Mn, Previous year Rs. 1,020.00 Mn.)
v) Amount outstanding of perpezual debt instraments 458.88 458.76

(Raised during the year: Nil, Previous year Nil)
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
(vi} Direct assignment & Securitisation

(a} Disclosures in respect of securitisation transactions as required under guidelines on securitization transactions issued by RBI vide cizcular no. RBI/DOR/2021-
22/85 DOR.STR.REC.53/2§.04.177/2021-22 Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard Assels) Directions, 2021 dated September
24, 2021 (updated as on December 05, 2022)

Sr. No

Particulars

As at]
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

b —

Hij

No. of $PVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions
Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC
Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date
of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss
- Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
- First Joss
- Others
Amount of exposures o assignment {ransactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First foss
- {rthers
ii) Exposure to third parey securitisations
- First loss
- Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
ii} Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Qthers

Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation

Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of, liquidity support, post-
securitisation assel servicing, ete

Performance of facility provided. Please provide scparately for each facifity viz. Credit enhancement,
Jiquidity support, servicing agent §0 etc.

Mentior percent in bracket as of total valug of facility provided.

1. Credit exhancement

a) Amount paid

b) Repayment received

9] Qutstanding amount

Average default rate of portfolios cbserved in the past. Please provide breakup separalely for each asset
class i.c. RMBS, Vchicie Loans cic.

Amount and nusmber of additional/top up loan given on same underlying asset. Please provide breakup
separately for each assct class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc.

Investor complaints () Directly/Indirectly received and; (b) Complaints outstanding

3
831.94

484,18

84.46
399.73

1,667.41

484.18

399.73

F)
1,309.54

551.52

106.47
445.05

1,667.41

551.52

445.05

*Only the SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions are reported here

(b} Disclosures in te notes 1o the accounts in respect of assignment transactions

Sr. Ne

Particulars

As at
March 31,2024

As atl
March 31, 2023

1
2

No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for assigniment transactions
Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPV's spansored by the NBFC

Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date
of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First less
- Others
b) On-bajance sheet exposures
- First loss
- Others
Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure 1o own sccuritisations
- First loss
- Others
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Otliers
b) On-balance sheet cxposures
iy Exposure o own securitisations
- First loss

73
2,221.94

534.83

534.83

62
2,000,12

511.52

51152
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
- Others

ity Exposure 10 third party sccuritisations
- First Joss
- Others

(c) Details of Financial Assets sold 20 Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction during the year

N N For the year ended|  For the year ended
§r. No | Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
(i) |No.ef accounts - 14
(i) |Agpregate value (net of provisions) of accoums seld to 8C 7/ RC - 942,55
(iii) |Aggregate consideration - 982.11
(iv) |Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in carlier years - -
(v) |Agpregate pain / {loss) over nct book value - 30.56

(d) Details of Assignment transactions undertaken during the year

Sr. No |Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Far the year ended
March 31, 2023

(i} [No. of accounts

(i) |Agperegate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC

(iii) |Aggregate consideration

(iv) |Additional consideration realized i respect of accounts transferred in eardier years
(v |Apprepate pain / {loss) over net book value

2
793.90

793.90

(e) Details of Securitization transactions undertaken during the year

Sr. No |Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

(iv) |Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in carlier years
(v) |Apgrepate gain/ loss ever net book value

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) |No.of accounts 515 376
(i) |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of ccounts sold 1,554.90 1,66741
{iii) |Aggregate consideration 1,554.90 1,667.41
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

(vii) Details of non-performing financials assets purchased / sold

A. Details of Non performing financial assets purchased:
Sr. For the year For the year,
No [Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2024} March 31, 2023
(a) |No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) |Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
(a) |Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
(b) |Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
B. Details of Non performing financial assets Sold:
Sr. For the year For the year
No {Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
(a) | No. of accounts sold - 14
(b) | Agaregate outstanding - 942.55
(¢} | Agaregate consideration received - 982.11
(viii) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect & exposure to capital market
a) Exposure te real estate sector, both direct and indirect
Sr. Particulars As at Asat
No March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
A |Direct exposure
(1) |Residential mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or 911,24 1,171.65
that is rented
(ii} [Commercial real estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose 2,349.08 1,686.93
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial
or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc).
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS} and other securitised exposures -
- Residential - -
- Commercial real estate - -
B |Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance - -
Companies (HFCs)
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 3,260.32 2,858.58
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
b) Exposure to capital market

Sr. Particul As at As at
No ['rHewiars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
i} |direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented - -

mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
ii) |advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for - -
investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds
ili) |advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of - -
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security
iv) |advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible - -
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security
other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
'does not fully cover the advances
v} |secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and - -
market makers
vi} |loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on - -
clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources
vii) |bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -
viii) |Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible - -
bonds or convertible debenturss or units of equity oriented mutual funds
ix) [Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading
x) |All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds: Category | 673.43 2,331.79
Total Exposure to Capital Market 673.43 2,331.79

(ix) Movements in non performing advances:
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross Stage 1l loans, Net Stage 11l and ECL provision
Sr. . As at As at
No |Farticulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
i}  [Net NPAs to net advances (%) 1.49% 2.22%
if) |Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 158.46 248.06
b) Additions during the year 62.84 990.04
¢) Reductions during the year (56.28) {1,079.64)
&) Closing balance 165.02 13846
itiy |Movement of net NPA
a) Opening balance 122.78 195.25
b) Additions during the year 39.96 909.59
¢) Reductions during the year (54.36) (982.06)
d) Closing balance 108.38 122.78
iv} |Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding prevision on Stage I & II leans)
a) Opening balance 35.68 52.81
b) Additions during the year 22.88 80.45
¢} Reductions during the year (1.92) (97.58)
d) Closing balance 56.64 35.68
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

xv)

Regulatory Disclosures

Details of single borrower limit and group berrewer limit exceeded by the Company:
During the current year ended 31 March 2024, the Company’s credit exposure to single borrowers and group borrowers were within the limits
prescribed by the RBI.

Previous year: GMR Bannerghatta Properties Private Limited

The above loans was disbursed within the limit of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) and Group Bomower Limit (GBL) as defined in RBI Master
Direction ‘DNBR. PD. (8/03.10.119/2016-17 Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Peposit taking Company {Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016 as amended. During the year, the limit was
breached due to change in the basis of the computation of SBL/GBL limit based om the RBI circular RBI/2021-22/112
DOR.CRE.REC.N0.60/03.10.001/2021 on Scale ased Regulation and defined based on net owned fund which was earlier based on owned fund.
The Company has taken the necessary steps to bring down the exposures of above borrower within applicable limit.

Unsecured Advances
The company has not taken any charges over the rights,licences,authorisation etc against unsecured loan given to borrowers.

Fraud Reporting
There were no instances of fraud identified and reported during the year (Previous Year Nil) as required in terms of Chapter Il paragraph 5 of
Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs {(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Remuneration of Directors
The company has not entered into any transaction with non-executive directors during the year (Previous Year Rs. Nil) except disclosure made in

table below:
Details of transaction with non executives directors

Name of Directors Nature of transaction For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Mr. Vinod Juneja Sitting fees 0.49 0.60
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Sitting fees 0.46 0.44

Net profit or loss for the period , prior period items and changes in accounting policy
There are no prior period items (previous year Rs, Nil} and there are no changes in accounting policies during the year.

Details of 'provisions and contingencies'

Break up of 'provisions and contingencies' shewn under the head expenditure For the year For the year,

in statement of profit and loss. ended ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

(i) Provision for depreciation on investment -
(i} Provision towards NPA (Stage 111 loans) 20.95 (17.08)
(i) Provision made towards income tax 22.40 12.63

{iv) Provision for Standard loans (Stage I & 11 loans) (50.34) (269.83)
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
(xvi) Draw down from Reserves

The Company has drawn Rs. Nil (Previous Year 44.93 million) from the debenture redemption reserve and transferred to retained earnings on
redemption of debentures till March 31, 2024, Further, pursuant to the amendments in the Companies Act, 2013, debenture redemption reserve is
not required to be created for debentures issued by Non-Banking Finance Companies (including Housing Finance Companies) regulated by Reserve

Bank of India.

(xvii) Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

A) Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs) As at As at
March 31, 2024} March 31, 2023
Total Deposits to twenty largest depositors NA NA
% of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to total Deposit taking NBFC NA NA
B) Concentration of advances As at Asat
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 5,245.46 3,033.67
% of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 71.20% 53.71%
C) Concentration of exposures (includes Off balance sheet cxposure)
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 5,345.46 3,141.83
% of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total Exposure 71.58% 54.51%
D) Concentration of NPAs
Total exposures to top four NPAs 77.18 115.18
E) Intra group exposures Asat Asat
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
i}  Total amount of intra-group exposures 4,598.47 1,895.24
i)  Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 4,598.47 1,895.24
iii)  Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/custorners 47.47% 20.92%
F} Sector-wise NPAs As at] As at
% of NPAs to total advances in that sector March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
1 Agriculture & allied activities 0.00% 0.00%
2 MSME 3.94% 1.88%
3 Corporate borrowers 0.20% 0.58%
4 Services 1.55% 2.13%
5 Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
6 Auto loans 0.00% 0.00%
7 Other personal loans 17.15% 13.74%
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G)  Sector-wise loans breakup
As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023
Total Gross NPAs % of Gross Total Gross NPAs % of Gross
Sectors Exposure* NPAs to total Exposure® NPAs to total
exposure in exposure in
that sector that sector
1 Agriculture and Allied Activities 33.20 0.00 0.00 48.03 - -
Industry (Micre and Small and 3,079.04 77.03 2.50% 3,690.50 11647 3.16%
2 medimum and Large)
2.1 Micro and Small 365.38 60.49 16.6% 452.89 67.60 14.9%
2.2 Medium 15.60 - 0.0% 37.18 - 0.0%
2.3 Large - - - - - -
2.4 Others 2,698.05 16.55 0.6% 3,200.43 48.87 1.5%
3 3. Services 3,564.12 55.30 1.55% 1,478.66 31.48 2,13%
3.1 Transport Operators - - - - - -
3.2 Computer Software - - - - - -
3.3 Tourism, Hotels and Restaurants 292.26 - - 324,93 - -
3.4 Shipping 25.19 - - 10.01 - -
3.5 Professional Services 424,60 - 0.0% 483.09 8.32 1.7%
3.6 Trade 12621 0.25 02% 157.46 0.74 0.5%
3.6.1 Wholesale Trade {Other than food P 425 - 0.0% 2.64 0.32 12.2%
3.6.2 Retail Trade 121.95 0.25 0.2% 154.82 0.42 0.3%
3.7 Commercial Real Estate - - - - - -
3.8 Non Banking Fiancials Companies g - - - - - -
3.9  Aviation 22.16 12.15 - 21.78 - -
3.10 Other Services 2,673.71 42.90 1.6% 481.39 22.41 4.7%
4. Personal Loans 690.95 32.69 4.7% 430.85 10.51 2.44%
Housing (Including Priority Sector - - - - - -
4.1 Housing)
4.2 Consumer Durables - - - - - -
4.3 Credit Card Outstanding . - - - - -
4.4  Vehicle Loans - - - - - -
4.5 Education - - - - - -
4.6 . - - - - -
Advances against Fixed Deposits
4.7 Advances to Individuals against i} . . _ - .
share, bonds, etc.
4.8 Loans against gold jewellery - - - - - -
4.9  Micro finance loans / SHG loans - - - - - -
4.10 Other Retail Loans 690.95 32.69 4.7% 430.85 10.51 2.4%
5 Others, if any (Please specify) - - - - - -
Total 7,367.31 165.02 2,24% 5,648.05 158.46 2.81%

*includes on balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposure
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{xviii) Customer complaints

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from custorers and firom the Offices of Ombudsman

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1) Compliants received by the NBFC from its customers
1 No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 2 -
2 No. of complaints received during the year 42 100
3 No. of complaints redressed during the year 42 98
31 Of which, number of complians rejected by the NBFC - 4
4 No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - 2
5 Number of Maintainable complaints reeeived by the NBFC from office of the Omnbudsman 8 17
5.1 OFf 5, mumber of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsnan 8 17
5.2 OF5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediationfadvisories issued by Office - -
of Ombudsman
3.3 Of 3, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the - -
NBFC
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) - -
2) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers
Grounds of Number of Number of % increase/ Number of Of 5, number
complaints complaints complaints |decrcase in the] complaints of
pending at received number of | .pending at the complaints
the during the complaints | end of the year pending
beginning of| year received over beyond 30 days
the year the previous
year
1 2 3 4 5 ]
FY2023-24
CIBIL Related - 15 - - -
Others 2 27 - - -
Total 2 42 -58% - -
FY2022-23
Qthers | - 100 | 85% [ 2 2

* Growitds of complains are basis on the grounds as specified in Scale Based Regulations issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
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(xix) Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencics

As at March 31, 2024
(2) {Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks Acuite
i) N - N -
. LT-NCD, LT LT-NCD, LT LT-NCPand LT- LTF-NCDand
Long term instruments Sub Debt and  Sub Debt and Sub Debt PerpDebt Perpetual Debt
Perp-Debt BLR B
ICRA
A+/Placed on
CRISIL A+ & BWR AA- &
i i v IT
Rating AfStable  TAUnE watch CARE A/Stable A+/Negative ACUITE A/Stable
with negative
implications
Amount 5,990.00 18,276.50 2,120.00 1,500.00 1,000.00
ii)  Short term instruments CPs-ST CPs-ST
Rating CRISIL Al+ NA CARE Al NA NA
Amount 5,000.00 NA 5,000.00 NA NA

{b) the migration of ratings during the year are given below:
(i) Acuite revise the long term rating A/Stabel from A-+/Negative on 04 July 2023,
(ii) CARE revise long term rating A+/Negative to A/Stable and short term rating Al+ to Al on 03 January 2024.
(iii) CRISIL revise long term rating A+& A/Stable from AA-&A+/Negative on 18 December 2023.
(iv) ICRA placed on rating watch with negative implications on 28 December 2023,

(a) AsatMarch 31, 2023

Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks Acuite
LT-NCD,LT- LT-NCD,LT-
. . ’ ’ - LT- - Perp-
i} Long term instrurments Sub Debtand  Sub Debt and LT-NCD and LT-NCD and Perp Perpetual Debt
Sub Debt Debt
Perp-Debt BLR
CRISIL AA- & ICRA . BWR AA- & ACUITE
Rating A+{Negative At/Stable CARE At/Negative A+{Negative A+fNegative
Amount 6,860.00 30,105.70 5,250.00 1,500.00 1,000,060
ii) Short term instruments CPs-ST CPs-ST
Rating CRISIL A1+ NA CARE Al+ NA NA
Amount 5,000.00 NA 5,000,00 NA NA

(b) the migration of ratings during the year are given below:

{i} Acuite revised the long term rating A+ from AA- on 3th August 2022,

(i) Brickwork changed the outlook Stable to Negative on 10th October 2022,
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

58,

(xxi)

(xxif)
(xxiii}
(xxiv)

(xxv)

{xxvi)

Regulatory Disclosures

Micro, Small and Mcdium Enterpriscs (MSME) sector — Restrueturing of Advances
(as required by RBI guidelines under reference RBI/2018-19/100 DBR.No.BP.BC,18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January 01, 2019)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

No of accounts restruciured

21

38

Amount {Indian rupees in millions)

365.60

582.90

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators - Nil (Previous Year - Nil)

Detail of financing parents company products -Nil (Previous Year - Nil}

Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators - Nii (Previous Year - Nil)

Ownership Overseas Assets {for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)

There are no overseas assets owned by the company (Previous year Nil)

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company

In terms of “"Para 31 of Master Direction ~ Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation} Directions, 2023 (RBI/DoR/2023-

24/106 DoR_FIN.REC. N0.45/03.10.1 19/2023-24) dated October 19, 2023,
Liahilitfes side:

Amount cutstanding

Amount overdue

Particulars As at Asal As at| Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1} Loans and advances availed by NBFC inclusive of interest acerued
ther¢on but not paid
{a) Debentuses:
(other than those falling within the meaning of Public deposit)
{i}  Secured’ 1,166.41 §89.88 - -
(i) Unsecured 2,233.62 2,190.60 - -
(b} Deterred credits - - - -
{¢) Term loans 180.34 266.39 - -
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - -
{e) Commercizl paper - - - -
(f) Other toans - - - -
{i} Loan from related parties - 0.17 - -
{ii) Bank overdrafi 7413 355.76 - -
(iii) Iater Corporate Deposits - 83.28 - -
Assets side;
2} Break up of loans and advances including bills receivables
{other than those included in (3) below)
{a) Secured 3,502.07 3,160.67 - -
(b) Unsecured 3,865.21 2,487.38 - -

3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other asseis counting
towards AFC activities

a) Lease assets inciuding lease renfals under sundry debtors:
{i) Financial lease
{if) Operating lease

b) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(3} Assets on hire
(ii) Repossessed assets

¢} Otker loans counting towards asset financing Company activities
(i} Loans where assets have been repossessed
(ii) Other loans




Edelweiss Retail Finance Eimited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlions)

58. Regulatory Disclosures

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

4) Break up of investments

(a) Quoted:

Current investments: {including securities held for trading)

{i)  Shares: Equity

Preference
{iiy Debentures and bords
(iii} Units of mutual funds
(iv) Govemnment securities
{v) Others

(b) Unquoted:

(i)  Shares: Equity
Preference
(ii} Debentures and bonds
(i)  Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government securities
(v) Others (pass through certificates}

Long-term investments (nel of provision)

{a) Quoted:

(iy  Shares: Equity

Preference
(ii} Debentures and bonds
(ii}) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government securities
(v) Others

{b) Unguoted:

(i)  Shares: Equity
Preference

(ii} Debentures and bonds

(i) Units of mutual funds

(ivy Government securities

(v) Others : Pass through certificates
Security receipts

Units of Alternative Invesiments Fuad (AIF)

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Particulars

Unsceured

Total

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 3, 2023

As af
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

As af
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31,2024

. Related parties™®
(a} Subsidiaries

(¢} Other related parties
2. Other than related parties

Total

(b) Companies in the same group

3,376.89

3,051.95

2,515.25

1,280.82

302.70

2,089.04

2,515.25

4,657.71

302.70

5,140.97

3,376.8%

3,051.95

3,796.07

2,391.71

7,172.96

544367

6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and tong-terms) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)

Particulars

Market value/break up or fair value or

NAY

Book va
(net of prov

lue
isions)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2024

Asal
March 31, 2023

1} Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries

(c) Otherrelated parties
2) Other than velated parties
Total

(b)) Companies in the same group

2,082.42

136.92
2,219.34

1,592.50

1,701.03
3,293.53

2,082.42

136.92
2,219.34

1,592.50

1,701.03
3,293.53




Edelweiss Refail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continned)

{Cwrrency : Indian rupees in millions)

58. Regulatory Disclosures

7} Other information

Sr. Particulars As at| Asat
No |2 March 31,2024]  March 31,2023

(a) |Gross non-performing assets

1) Related parties
2) Other than related parties 165.02 158.46

(b

=

Net nop-performing assets
1} Related parties
2) Other than related parties 108.38

(c) [Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

{xxvii) Disclosure on perpetual debt

For the year
ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Amount of funds raised through Perpetual debt Nil Nil
instrument during the year

A As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Principal amount outstanding as at year end. 450.00 430.00
Percentage of the amount of Perpetual debt of the 12.64% 8.37%

amounl of its Tier [ Capital

Unpaid interest on Perpetual debt - -

(xxviiiy There are no amount due and outstanding to be credited to investor education & protection Furd as at March 31, 2024 and at March 31, 2023

{xxix} Off balane sheet SPV sponsored -NIL (Previous year NIL}
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Confinued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

{xxxi} Disclosure on liquidity risk

a)

b)

d)

€)

As required in in accordance with para 26 of RBI Master Direction no. RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.No.45/03.10.119/2023-24-Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023,

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings) As at

March 31, 2024
Number of significant counterparties™* 12
Amount of borrowings from significant counterparties 2,402.13
% of Total deposits NA
% of Total liabilities** 51.84%

* “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than
1% of the NBFC-NDST's total liabilities

¥* “Total liabilities ™ refers to total external liabilities {i.e. excluding total equity).

Top 20 large deposits

The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India, does not
accept public deposits.

Top 10 Borrowings As at
March 31, 2024
Amount of Borrowings from top ¢ lenders 2,281.13
% of Total Borrowings 62.42%
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product® As at March 31, 2024
Amount % of Total Liabilities**

Market Borrowings

Non Convertible Debentares 1,166.41 25.17%

Perpetual and Sub-ordinated Debentures 2,233.62 48.20%
Other Borrowings

Terin Loans 180.34 3.89%

Cash Credit Lines 7413 1.60%

* "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instrurnents/products which in aggregate amount 1o more
than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabiiities.

** “Total liabilities " refers to total external liabilities (i.e. excluding total equity).

Stock Ratios As at

March 31, 2024
Comimercial papers as a % of total public funds* 0.00%
Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 0.00%
Commercial papers as a % of total assets 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets 0.60%
Other short-term labilities**, if any as a % of total public funds 2.03%
Other short-term liabilities**, if any as a % of total liabilities 1.60%
Other short-term labilities**, if any as a % of total assets 0.73%

* “Total public funds” refers to the aggregate of Debt securities, Borrowing other than debt securities and Suberdinated liabilities.
** “Other short-term liabilities” refers to the borrowing in shoit terin in nature..




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

63. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. D. Apte & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 100515W

o~ A V\O-\
per Mayuresh V., Zele Shama Aspani Phanindranath Kakarla
Partner Director Director
Membership no: 150027 DIN: 09774021 DIN: 02076676

SNV

Hitesh Bhadada Reema Shah
Flace : Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date ; 6th May 2024 FSC 5052
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